To the Mayor and Councillors of the London Borough of Lambeth

YOU ARE SUMMONED TO ATTEND A MEETING of the COUNCIL to be held in the Lambeth Town Hall,
Brixton Hill, SW2 1RW on Wednesday 18 July 2018 at 7.00 pm

ANDREW TRAVERS
Interim CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Wayne Chandai, Telephone: 020 7926 0029; Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Published on: Tuesday 10 July 2018
@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

AGENDA
Appendices to reports – bulky appendices are published on the website www.lambeth.gov.uk and can
be obtained from Democratic Services. They are not circulated with the agenda.
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests

Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council,
a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw
from the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that
matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.
2.

Minutes

1 - 10

To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 23
May 2018
3.

Announcements
Presentation from the Youth Council
Youth Debating Competition – Prize Giving
Tribute to Dame Tessa Jowell

4.

Petitions, PNQs and Deputations
No public notice questions were received.
Petitions will be presented at the meeting by Councillors.
The deadline for the receipt of requests for a deputation is 5pm, Friday 13th
July 2018. Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk

5.

Cabinet Statement

6.

Opposition Statement

7.

Questions from Councillors

11 - 28

8.

Motions

29 - 36

9.

Reports

a)

Appointment of the Chief Executive

37 - 40

b)

Corporate Committee Annual Report - 2017/18

41 - 60

c)

Overview and Scrutiny Annual report - 2017/18

61 - 88

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.
Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)
Further assistance
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

COUNCIL
Wednesday 23 May 2018 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
The Worshipful the Mayor in the Chair

COUNCILLORS PRESENT:
Councillors Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Scott Ainslie, Councillor David
Amos, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu, Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Mary Atkins,
Councillor Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Matthew Bennett, Councillor Anna Birley,
Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Tim Briggs,
Councillor Lucy Caldicott, Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor Rezina
Chowdhury, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake, Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Kevin
Craig, Councillor Edward Davie, Councillor Jon Davies, Councillor Jim Dickson,
Councillor Ibrahim Dogus, Councillor Jacqui Dyer, Councillor Jane Edbrooke,
Councillor Pete Elliott, Councillor Peter Ely, Councillor Paul Gadsby, Councillor
Adrian Garden, Councillor Pauline George, Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor
Nigel Haselden, Councillor Claire Holland, Councillor Jack Hopkins, Councillor
Mohamed Jaser, Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor Jessica
Leigh, Councillor Joshua Lindsey, Councillor Marianna Masters, Councillor Jackie
Meldrum, Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Philip Normal, Councillor Emma
Nye, Councillor Lib Peck, Councillor Jane Pickard, Councillor Joanna Reynolds,
Councillor Mohammed Seedat, Councillor Iain Simpson, Councillor Joanne Simpson,
Councillor Becca Thackray, Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Tina Valcarcel,
Mayor Christopher Wellbelove, Councillor Clair Wilcox, Councillor Andy Wilson,
Councillor Timothy Windle and Councillor Sonia Winifred
APOLOGIES:

1.

Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Annie Gallop,
Councillor Mahamed Hashi, Councillor Maria Kay,
Councillor Jennie Mosley and Councillor Matt Parr

ELECTION OF MAYOR
The beginning of the meeting was delayed to accommodate observers in the
public gallery. Annual Council commenced 7:10pm.
Councillor Marcia Cameron in the Chair.

Page 2
Councillor Paul Gadsby proposed a motion to elect Councillor Christopher
Wellbelove as the Mayor of Lambeth for the municipal year 2018/19.
The meeting was adjourned from 7:15pm to 7:20pm because of persistent
disruption from the public gallery.
It was moved by Councillor Paul Gadsby, seconded by Councillor Jane
Edbrooke and:
RESOLVED to elect Councillor Christopher Wellbelove as the Mayor of
Lambeth for the municipal year 2018/19.
The following declaration was made and subscribed before the Chief
Executive:
‘I, Christopher Wellbelove, having been selected to the office of Mayor of the
London Borough of Lambeth, hereby declare that I take that office upon
myself, and will duly and faithfully fulfil the duties of it to the best of my
judgement and ability. I undertake to observe the code as to the conduct
which is expected of members of the London Borough of Lambeth.’
The meeting was adjourned from 7:23pm to 7:30pm to enable the investiture
to take place in the Mayor’s Parlour.
Councillor Christopher Wellbelove in the Chair.
The newly elected Mayor thanked Council and said he was humbled to be
elected as Mayor for a second term. He would take every opportunity to raise
awareness around mental health, in particular he would work to break the
silence around mental health and promote the work of his chosen charity,
Mosaic Clubhouse.
The Mayor then introduced his guest, Paul, who spoke about his journey of
mental health recovery through Mosaic Clubhouse. Following this, the Mayor
introduced another guest, John Moore, who performed a song to Council.
Due to persistent disruption from the public gallery, the Mayor was of the
opinion that in anticipation of further disorder, and in order for Council
business to be properly considered, the public should be excluded from the
remainder of the meeting. The Press were permitted to remain.
The meeting was adjourned from 7:57pm to 8:07pm.

2.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR
It was moved by Councillor Kevin Craig, seconded by Councillor Jane
Edbrooke and:
RESOLVED to elect Councillor Ibrahim Dogus to the office of Deputy Mayor
of the London Borough of Lambeth for the municipal year 2018-19.

ii

Page 3
The following declaration was made and subscribed before the Chief
Executive:
‘I, Councillor Ibrahim Dogus, having been elected to the office of Deputy
Mayor of the London Borough of Lambeth hereby declare that I take that
office upon myself, and will duly and faithfully fulfil the duties of it according to
the best of my judgement and ability’.

3.

REPORT OF MAYORAL ACTIVITIES FOR 2017-18 BY THE OUTGOING
MAYOR, COUNCILLOR MARCIA CAMERON
The outgoing Mayor’s report was deferred.

4.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor noted the sad passing of Dame Tessa Jowell and requested that
councillors defer their tributes to the next meeting of Council. Council was
then invited to join the Mayor in a minute of silence as a mark of respect.
The Mayor made a short announcement about the recent local elections and
invited Councillors Lib Peck and Jonathan Bartley to address Council.
Councillor Peck said she was proud to be re-elected as Leader of the
Council, particular as one of 25 female Labour council leaders. She
described her experiences canvassing before the election and noted that
local people were overwhelmingly satisfied with council services, including
the significant investment in cycling infrastructure and council housing. The
Labour administration was proud of its record on a range of issues and
valued its close relationship with local partners and organisations. It was
equally proud to represent the diverse, tolerant and engaged local population;
also noting that distinct local identities needed to be maintained and
enhanced. Local people understood the financial restraints on the Council
and all councillors were invited to support the campaign against government
austerity. The Labour administration was ready to continue improving
services for the people of Lambeth.
Councillor Bartley congratulated the Mayor on his election and thanked
officers for their work during the members’ induction. The Lambeth Green
Party believed in plural politics and had received the support of voters from
other party backgrounds. In forming the official Opposition, it had made
history and would continue to work on issues including libraries, estates and
bin collections. The Green Party would welcome the cooperation of other
councillors on an issue by issue basis. Councillor Becca Thackray, who had
served as a councillor between 2010 and 2014, was congratulated on her
return office.

5.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were none.
iii

Page 4
6.

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2018
be approved and signed as a correct record of the proceedings.

7.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, CABINET PORTFOLIOS, OTHER
ADMINISTRATION AND OPPOSITION APPOINTMENTS
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Jonathan Bartley, addressed
Council and welcomed the new cabinet portfolio for Environment and Clean
Air. He also said there was local cross-party support for the committee
system of governance and that the Green Party endorsed this approach.
Other councils had successfully reverted to the committee system following
the Localism Act (2011) and the approach warranted proper consideration by
the Council.
The Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Performance),
Councillor Jack Hopkins, commented on the high quality of Labour
councillors elected to office and expressed confidence in their ability to
deliver over 100 manifesto pledges. The proposed cabinet member
portfolios had been designed specifically to deliver these initiatives and
the administration would get to work immediately.
Council moved to vote on the recommendations as presented in the report:
RESOLVED, unanimously
1) To elect Councillor Lib Peck as Leader of the Council.
2) To note the Cabinet appointments as made by the Leader of the Council
and other group appointments
3) To note Opposition appointments as set out in the report.

8.

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Jonathan Bartley, addressed
Council and noted there was a legal requirement for a member of the Green
Party to have a seat on each council committee. It was disappointing that an
Opposition member had not be offered the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
position. Furthermore, the local government voting system was problematic
and consequently the Green Party had lost out. The Council should take
actions to move towards proportional representation and fairer allocations for
the Green Party on committees.
Councillor Jane Edbrooke (Labour) said that Labour had an overwhelming
majority and that every administration councillor had a mandate to participate
on council committees. The proposed allocation of seats over-represented
Opposition members and it would be unfair to stretch this further. Members
from both Opposition parties had been offered seats on Overview and
Scrutiny and their participation was welcomed.

iv

Page 5
Council moved to vote on the recommendations as presented in the report:
For: 50
Against: 1
Abstain: 5
RESOLVED
1) That the report of the Chief Executive setting out the recommended
allocation of seats to political groups, as set out in Table 2 below, be
adopted.
2) That Council reappoints its Committees with the sizes and allocation of
seats between political groups as set out in Table 2 of the report.

9.

CONSTITUTION 2018-19
Councillor Tim Briggs (Conservative) said the proposed change to the
overview and scrutiny call-in mechanism, raising the threshold from one to
five members, was misguided and unreasonable. With only six Opposition
councillors in place, the new threshold would prevent residents from voicing
their concerns on policies that affected their lives. Councillor Briggs listed the
issues that had been considered at previous call-in meetings which he said
would not have happened if the proposed arrangements had been in place.
The administration had a responsibility to allow thorough public scrutiny of
their policies.
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Jonathan Bartley, objected to the
proposed changes and said that they were significant amendments that had
not been properly consulted on. Constitutional changes should instead be
dealt with through the cross-party Constitutional Working Group and then
brought to Council.
The previous Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Ed
Davie, addressed Council and explained that the committee had held seven
different call-in meetings in a single year under the last administration. This
was more than the entire number of ordinary meetings and had been a
significant drain on resources. The Overview and Scrutiny function was
completely separated from the executive and Labour councillors had
previously called-in decisions. A shift in emphasis was now required towards
pre-decision scrutiny, to be brought about through enhanced intelligence
sharing. The mechanism for call-in would remain in place and the revised
threshold would encourage more effective scrutiny.
Council moved to vote on the recommendations as presented in the report:
Councillor Jonathan Bartley requested that individual votes be recorded. The
Chair approved the request and individual votes were recorded for all
councillors.

v

Page 6
Councillor
Danny Adilypour
Scott Ainslie
David Amos
Donatus Anyanwu
Mary Atkins
Liz Atkins
Jonathan Bartley
Matthew Bennett
Anna Birley
Jennifer Brathwaite
Linda Bray
Tim Briggs
Lucy Caldicott
Marcia Cameron
Rezina Chowdhury
Malcolm Clark
Joe Corry-Roake
Fred Cowell
Kevin Craig
Ed Davie
Jon Davies
Jim Dickson
Ibrahim Dogus
Jacqui Dyer
Jane Edbrooke
Pete Elliott
Peter Ely
Paul Gadsby
Annie Gallop
Adrian Garden
Pauline George
Nicole Griffiths
Nigel Haselden
Mahamed Hashi
Claire Holland
Jack Hopkins
Mohamed Jaser
Maria Kay
John Kazantis
Ben Kind
Jessica Leigh
Joshua Lindsey
Marianna Masters
Jackie Meldrum
Irfan Mohammed
Jennie Mosley
Philip Normal
Emma Nye

For
x

Against Abstain Absent
x

x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
vi

Page 7
Matthew Parr
Lib Peck
Jane Pickard
Joanna Reynolds
Mohammed Seedat
Joanne Simpson
Iain Simpson
Becca Thackray
Martin Tiedemann
Tina Valcaral
Christopher Wellbelove*
Clair Wilcox
Andrew Wilson
Timothy Windle
Sonia Winifred
Total
*The Mayor did not vote

x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
48

6

2

6

RESOLVED
1) To note the table of proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution
(Appendix 1).
2) To approve the Council’s Constitution 2018-19, including:
 The responsibility for functions, including the executive, local choice
functions and the discharge of functions by way of the joint committees
and other bodies
 Scheme of delegation to Cabinet Members and officers, as set out in
the Constitution
 Establishment of Cabinet, including its terms of reference
 Scrutiny arrangements: appointment of the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee with the terms of reference, constitution, membership and
call in. Appointment of a Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee,
with the terms of reference.
 Rules of procedure (Part 3 of the constitution)
 Codes and protocols (Part 4 of the constitution)
 Management structure (Part 6 of the constitution)
3) To appoint the Chairs, Vice-Chairs and other members of committees
(including substitute members except where such members are excluded
by its constitution) (Appendix 2).
4) To recommend the Appointments, Corporate, Licensing and Standards
Committees to appoint their respective sub-committees with the terms of
reference, constitution and membership (including substitute members
except where such members are excluded by its constitution).
5) To invite Cabinet to appoint the bodies to undertake executive functions
as set out in Part 2, Section 2 of the Constitution.

vii

Page 8
6) To invite Cabinet to confirm the renewal of all joint arrangements (whether
by way of joint committee or otherwise), as detailed in Part 2, Section 5 of
the Constitution, which, following the adoption by the Council of executive
arrangements, became either the sole responsibility of the Cabinet, or
partly the responsibility of the Cabinet and partly the responsibility of the
Council.
7) To appoint the representatives of the Council on other bodies and outside
organisations (Appendix 3).
8) To approve the annual schedule of meetings set out in appendix 4.

10.

MEMBERS ALLOWANCE SCHEME 2018-19
Councillor Tim Briggs (Conservative) raised concerns about the proposed
members’ allowances scheme, in particular some of the Special
Responsibilities Allowances (SRAs) which he said could not be justified.
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Jonathan Bartley, said he was
committed to campaign against funding cuts and proposed a 56% cut in the
additional SRAs for councillors. He proposed a motion without notice to refer
the issue back to the appropriate person, the Chief Executive. The Chair
denied the motion and requested Councillor Bartley defer the motion the first
ordinary meeting of Council.
Councillor Jane Edbrooke (Labour) said that the overall SRA budget had
been cut but that Lambeth was a large borough with a range of complex
challenges. Labour was proud to introduce new Policy Lead positions which
had been designed to tackle some of the borough’s most pressing issues.
Council moved to vote on the recommendations as presented in the report:
Councillor Jonathan Bartley requested that individual votes be recorded. The
Chair approved the request and individual votes were recorded for all
councillors.
Councillor
Danny Adilypour
Scott Ainslie
David Amos
Donatus Anyanwu
Mary Atkins
Liz Atkins
Jonathan Bartley
Matthew Bennett
Anna Birley
Jennifer Brathwaite
Linda Bray
Tim Briggs
Lucy Caldicott

For
x

Against Abstain Absent
x

x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
viii

Page 9
Marcia Cameron
Rezina Chowdhury
Malcolm Clark
Joe Corry-Roake
Fred Cowell
Kevin Craig
Ed Davie
Jon Davies
Jim Dickson
Ibrahim Dogus
Jacqui Dyer
Jane Edbrooke
Pete Elliott
Peter Ely
Paul Gadsby
Annie Gallop
Adrian Garden
Pauline George
Nicole Griffiths
Nigel Haselden
Mahamed Hashi
Claire Holland
Jack Hopkins
Mohamed Jaser
Maria Kay
John Kazantis
Ben Kind
Jessica Leigh
Joshua Lindsey
Marianna Masters
Jackie Meldrum
Irfan Mohammed
Jennie Mosley
Philip Normal
Emma Nye
Matthew Parr
Lib Peck
Jane Pickard
Joanna Reynolds
Mohammed Seedat
Joanne Simpson
Iain Simpson
Becca Thackray
Martin Tiedemann
Tina Valcaral
Christopher Wellbelove*
Clair Wilcox
Andrew Wilson
Timothy Windle

x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
ix

Page 10
Sonia Winifred
Total
*The Mayor did not vote

x
50

6

0

6

RESOLVED:
1) To approve the appended Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2018-19,
with backdating of both Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances to
Tuesday 8 May 2018 as set out in appendix 1.

The meeting ended at 8:45pm.
MAYOR
Wednesday 18 July 2018
Date of Despatch: Friday 1 June 2018
Contact for Enquiries: Wayne Chandai

Tel: 020 7926 0029
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

x

Page 11

Council,

Agenda Item 7

18 July 2018

Questions from Councillors
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corporate Resources, Jackie Belton
Contact for enquiries: Wayne Chandai, Democratic Services Manager, Corporate
Resources, 020 7926 0029, wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
Questions and answers submitted by Councillors, in accordance with Standing Order 12, are
set out below.

Page 12

1. Councillor Scott Ainslie
To: Leader of the Council, Lib Peck
Has the council been contacted by the Information Commission and the Equalities and Human
Rights Commission in regards to SOSA's claim that the redress scheme discriminates against
various groups?
Party: Green
Answer: The council has not been contacted by the Information Commissioner nor the Equality
and Human Rights Commission. However, we have been in contact with SOSA and their
solicitors regarding their concerns.
Lambeth council is committed to ensuring that the Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress
Scheme provides fair and accessible redress to all survivors of abuse at Lambeth's former
children’s homes, as was laid out at the December cabinet meeting. The redress scheme and
the associated equalities impacts are being monitored on an ongoing basis, and a six-month
review of the of the redress scheme which will take place in September. The council is also
planning to hold a stakeholder event, the outcomes of which will feed into that review. We are
consulting with The National Association for People Abused in Childhood (NAPAC) and with
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust for the planning of that event.
The Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress Scheme was adopted in December last year. It was
then, and remains today, the only scheme in the country to offer redress to survivors through
both a Harms Way Payment (HWP) and an Individual Redress Payment (IRP). The scheme
avoids re-traumatising abuse survivors in court, as well as the time delays and legal bills.
To date 500 applications have been made from all over the world. More than 340 people have
received HWP to a value of £3.2million for those who were resident at a Lambeth Children’s
Home and feared that they would be physically or sexually abused, neglected or suffer cruelty.
There are also currently 466 IRPs are currently under-assessment. The first IRPs are
complete and the majority of the rest are expected to take a matter of months to resolve, rather
than years, which is can be the case when claims are considered through the courts.
The scheme has thus far had a very low rate of applications on behalf of disabled children
who were at the homes, and this is one of the issues the review of the scheme will look to
address.
The council takes this scheme very seriously, and knows the council of today cannot undo the
terrible wrongs that occurred under the council in the past. We also know we can’t force people
to use the redress scheme, and some people will want to pursue their claims through the
courts as is their right. But for those who decide to use the scheme we want to make the
scheme as fair, accessible and as swift as possible.

Page 13

2. Councillor Tim Briggs
To: Deputy Leader of the Council (Children and Young People), Councill or Jennifer
Brathwaite
During the election campaign, among the many statements made by Labour councillors and
candidates to attract support, perhaps the most misleading was the endlessly repeated claim
that the Conservative Government was making ‘massive cuts to schools funding in Lambeth’.
Labour councillors and candidates were aware that according to respected cross-party
organisation London Councils, funding for Lambeth Schools in 2018-19 and 2019-20 was
increased by 0.9%, despite international pressure to pay down the huge debt left by Labour
nationally, and alongside record employment and record inward investment. Labour members
can argue that after setting off increased costs there is not much of an increase left, but Labour
councillors would then still have to concede that there were no ‘massive cuts to schools
funding.’
Will Labour councillors and candidates now admit that there are no ‘massive cuts to schools
funding in Lambeth’, and that funding for schools in Lambeth has increased?
Party: Conservative
Answer: It is a real shame that Cllr Briggs continues to dismiss the dire funding crisis facing
teachers, parents and children despite the clear evidence that schools throughout Lambeth
and London are having their budgets cut by this government. One would have hoped that his
attitude would have changed following his party’s crushing defeat at the recent council
elections and the rejection of his platform, which included attacking parents campaigning
against school cuts.
There have been small nominal funding rises announced for schools funding per pupil in was
2018/19 and 2019/20, but these will amount to half a per cent in the first year and even less
than that paltry figure in the second year. This will not cover the cost increases that schools
will incur over the same period, with expected increases in inflation and other costs expected
to exceed two percent in many schools. Schools have also had to manage increases in
pension and national insurance costs as well as the apprenticeship levy. Whatever the tricks
pulled by the government, schools will face a real terms funding cut.
If Cllr Briggs had read the full London councils report, he would have seen that London
Councils estimates that councils across London face a funding gap of £406 million this year,
and that Lambeth’s settlement was the joint lowest in London.
It is worth recalling that these funding allocations were announced as additional funding for
schools after huge opposition to the planned funding cuts which would have seen
approximately £24 million cut from Lambeth schools. This was opposed by a huge campaign
by parents, teachers and pupils under the Fair Funding for Schools banners which Labour
councillors were proud to support. Cllr Briggs is on the record at Full Council supporting those
cuts and has even attacked the parent-led campaign as “extremists”.

Page 14

If Cllr Briggs listened to parents and teachers instead of attacking them, he would know that
in Lambeth there are already a number of schools that are in deficit and many more
consistently tell us about the difficulties they are facing in providing a good quality of education
with the levels of funding that they have been receiving. As a Labour council, we believe in
investing in our children’s future and we will continue to argue for the best deal for the families
and young people that live in the area.

3. Councillor Phillip Normal
To: Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, Councillor Ed Davie
Sexual Health services
I fully welcome The Mayor of London signing up London to be a Fast Track City, an initiative
that could realistically, using medical advancements and community partnerships to eradicate
HIV from our city. With sexual health funding being cut by the Tory government and Lambeth
having the highest rates of HIV in Europe, how are we approaching and tackling the issue of
HIV and sexual health?
Party: Labour
Answer: I thank Councillor Normal for his question and for the campaigning he, and others,
have taken part in to raise the profile of this vital issue and make the huge improvements we
have seen in prevention, treatment and stigma reduction.
In June I attended Princess of Wales Annual AIDS Memorial Lecture where Sir Elton John
singled out Lambeth Council for its leadership on HIV and working with his Foundation to
establish the “world’s first HIV social impact bond”.
That said we are not complacent and will not rest until we have helped halt all new HIV
transmissions, ensured the best care for those who are positive and ended stigma against
those communities disproportionately affected.
To that end Lambeth is a key player in the Fast Track Cities Initiative (FTCI), partly due to our
expertise and leadership as the lead borough on the London HIV Prevention Programme
(LHPP) and partly as one of our senior officers sits on the Advisory Kickstart Group that is
driving forward the FTC workstreams and was a guest speaker at the signatory event at City
Hall in January.
Lambeth is regarded as leading the way on sexual health and HIV, locally and nationally,
because of a number of initiatives.
First, we manage and deliver the LHPP. Funded by 31 London authorities, Lambeth
contributes the largest proportion of the budget and has led London’s response to HIV,
resulting in a historic reduction in new HIV diagnoses since the programme began in 2015.
The LHPP is comprised of various workstreams, including a free condom distribution and

Page 15

outreach scheme for men who have sex with men (MSM) and the groundbreaking DO IT
LONDON campaign which reaches all Londoners, with a particular emphasis on most-at-risk
communities. Using innovative social marketing strategies and detailed consumer data, it
promotes sexual health and HIV prevention messages to the public, and has successfully
delivered six phases of highly-approved campaigns since spring 2015. Recently awarded
Campaign of the Year at the 2018 LGC Awards, Do It London was the first official public
campaign in the UK to promote Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP) and ‘undetectable’ HIV
status as core HIV prevention options, alongside more recognised methods such as condom
use and regular testing. The LHPP team, based within Lambeth’s Public Health department,
also won a Special Award for Outstanding Achievement at the recent (Dec 2017) Lambeth
Staff Awards. The LHPP has secured funding and political support from all participating
boroughs at least until 31 March 2019. Alongside a new wave of Do It London campaigns,
launching this week (2 July), this summer will see a business case to continue the highly
efficient programme, which benefits Lambeth residents in particular, taken to the Association
of Directors of Public Health London, with final sign off by Leaders at a forthcoming Leaders’
Committee of London Councils.
In addition to LHPP, Lambeth has led the way in innovative methods of providing sexual health
services to local residents, through our partnered commissioning with Southwark and
Lewisham.
Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham sexual health strategy
LSL are currently refreshing their joint sexual health strategy. Our boroughs have high rates
of STI and HIV testing. The strategy will look at maintaining our high quality STI testing and
treatment services and improving access for most-at-risk populations.
Online STI self-sampling services
The online STI self-sampling service SH:24 was created locally by a public health consultant
formerly of Lambeth and Southwark. Lambeth has been at the forefront of adopting technology
to encourage more people into sexual health services and has commissioned SH:24 since
2015 to deliver online STI self-sampling. As of 1 July, Lambeth is transitioning to the London
e-service, called Sexual Health London (SHL), which will have capacity to reach even more
residents with its online testing offer.
Additionally, we are continuing to work with SH:24 around improving online access to
contraception. They are already offering our residents oral contraception online and will soon
be offering advice, information and preparation around long acting reversible contraception
(LARC), webchat with clinical staff on LARC and access to a clinically moderated peer forum
to discuss contraception.
Lambeth continues to invest in an online HIV self-sampling service called Test.HIV. Residents
are able to access this service online if they are seeking an HIV test only.
Rise Partnership
Since 2016, Lambeth (along with Southwark and Lewisham) have commissioned the Rise
Partnership to deliver sexual health promotion and HIV prevention interventions to some of
the most-at-risk populations in our boroughs, primarily black African and Caribbean,

Page 16

Portuguese and Latin American heterosexuals. There is also a parenting programme within
the partnership which has a dual purpose of working with vulnerable parents who then go on
to educate and inform their children about sex and relationships. A secondary strand of work
within the Rise Partnership sees Antidote @ London Friend conduct group work and 1-1
interventions with men who have sex with men who are engaging in chemsex.
Elton John AIDS Foundation HIV social impact bond
EJAF have established a new Community Interest Company (CIC) to begin to fund HIV
interventions which will deliver agreed outcomes (improving the HIV diagnostic rate,
particularly with a focus on reducing late diagnoses and for re-engaging people with HIV who
are lost to treatment and care so their condition is better managed). EJAF have started
conversations with King’s College Hospital and Lewisham and Greenwich Hospital Trust about
funding testing in A&E and is also recruiting three GP champions – one per borough – to work
on developing proposals and interventions which can increase testing and diagnoses in
primary care. Meetings are also occurring with a range of voluntary and community sector
groups to consider what community interventions will achieve the necessary outcomes and
can be funded under the auspices of the Social Impact Bond.

4. Councillor Donatus Anyanwu
To: Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Councillor Sonia Winifred
Windrush
The government recently announced that that there will be an annual celebration for Windrush
Day. Following the successful celebrations in Lambeth this year, can the Cabinet member
describe the plans the council has to continue celebrating the contributions of the Windrush
generation in future years.
Party: Labour
Answer: Lambeth has been at the heart of the Windrush70 commemorations and events have
ranged from the hugely successful Harry Jacobs exhibition in the Town Hall to talks and
debates including a series organised by the Windrush Foundation and Professor Sir Hilary
Beckles at Brixton Library. Lambeth is home to Champion Design Agency who created the
logo and pin badge which has been used widely and was launched here by the Communities
Minister Lord Bourne in the spring. Our celebrations have been an exemplar of true
partnership, working with Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG),
Windrush Foundation, Young Lambeth Coop, Black Cultural Archives, Brixton BID, Thurrock
Council and The Voice. Age UK Lambeth helped organise a tea party for older residents on
Windrush Day in the Town Hall and anyone who was in Windrush Square on Saturday 23rd
June will have seen the diversity of our celebrations from opera to reggae, popcorn to poetry,
storytelling and dominoes. Local support has been fantastic – from businesses to schools,
individuals and organisations and we are also grateful to MHCLG for their
support. Windrush70 has seen Lambeth at its very best and is a great foundation on which to
plan for future years’ annual Windrush Day.

Page 17

5. Councillor Rezina Chowdhury
To: Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Jonathan Bartley
Diversity
It was clear at the Lambeth count for the local elections that Caroline Lucas is right in saying
the Greens are "a very white party" that needs to do much more to become more diverse.
Does Cllr Bartley agree with his fellow co-leader and can he outline what steps he has to
improve the diversity of Green party representation in Lambeth?
Party: Labour
Answer: Thank you so much for your concern about the Green Party and how we can improve
our representation in Lambeth. We are only 5 in number but we are absolutely committed to
increase both our numbers of councillors and their diversity. Along with Caroline Lucas and I,
other members of our party some time ago launched a holistic review of our party’s structures
which will look at ways we will continue to do this both at the local and national level.
On June 21st I launched – at the Black cultural archives on Windrush Square in Lambeth - the
Deyika Nzeribe Fund. This was named after our party’s Manchester Mayoral candidate who
died tragically on New Year’s eve 2017. I was pleased to welcome at that launch the first
Green Mayor of Sheffield – Magid Magid – a refugee from Somalia who is also the youngest
ever mayor. I was also thrilled to welcome the first and the new Green Mayor of Bristol Cleo
Lake a proud Bristolian of African-Caribbean heritage. The fund – overseen by Greens of
Colour - will support, engage and develop Green candidates of global south heritage in
Lambeth. It is worth noting that two thirds of our Parliamentary candidates in Lambeth at the
last two general elections were of BME origin – more than any other party in Lambeth ever.
Considering diversity more widely, one of the challenges I set the party was to encourage
more candidates who were disabled to stand. At the 2017 general election I was proud to
launch our disability manifesto alongside the first deaf/blind candidate ever to stand in a
general election in the UK. In that election 14% of our candidates were disabled. I have also
been working to restore the Access to Elected Office fund, which has been cut by the
Government. This is key to getting disabled councillors elected both in Lambeth and more
widely.
In terms of gender, our Parliamentarians in both houses are women, as are our London
Assembly members and two out of three MEPs. We have had a woman lead the party as long
as we have had a leader. These are things that we are all incredibly proud of, and we look
forward to the day that a woman one day leads the Labour Party too. We have also pioneered
the first leadership job-share arrangement in the hope that it will set a precedent and open
new avenues and opportunities for people to stand from all backgrounds. We have had jobsharing arrangements in place in Lambeth Green Party for several years too. I have been very
glad to see that Lambeth Council has now followed the Green Party’s lead, with its job-sharing
arrangement for cabinet members.

Page 18

6. Councillor Josh Lindsey
To: Cabinet Member for Voluntary Sector, Partnerships & Community Safety,
Councillor Mohammed Seedat
Youth Violence
The level of young violence across London is something that blights our communities and
means many of our young people live in fear. Can the cabinet member give us an update on
recent activity in Lambeth to try and prevent youth violence and how we are supporting our
young people?
Party: Labour
Answer: I agree that this violence is abhorrent and must be stopped – every young person
should be able to live their life free of violence, and one stabbing is too many.
We are committed to tackling this issue, and preventing future generations from suffering the
same tragedies. We recently started the development of the borough’s first public health
strategy to stop violence against young people, as agreed at cabinet in late March. This is
bringing together our communities and third sector groups in a new way to try and change the
fundamental factors causing these issues in the first place. It’s based on the year-long study
we did on violence in Lambeth, and will work to address key factors such as early adverse
childhood experiences, the design of our public spaces and the support we give schools to
prevent violence. In the first year of the strategy we are committed to:








Developing an offer of support for every young person in a school in Lambeth, to
ensure everyone gets the advice and support they need even at the primary school
level to keep them safe
Putting youth violence at the heart of our practice, with a focus on trauma based
delivery, so that our frontline staff can recognise the unique issues youth violence
causes and how best to respond to it
Working closer with our third sector groups and communities, to make we share
information and intelligence to prevent critical incidents from occurring and get the
best response for the young people affected
Developing hyper-local programmes for the localities with the highest levels of
violence and need, bringing together all of the partners, groups and residents in that
area to deliver a tailored solution led by residents (including police, health, housing,
TFL, schools etc).

In addition, we have an agreed knife crime action plan with our local police, based off the work
of our children’s safeguarding board and our Young People at risk strategy that focusses on
substantial risk issues we currently face in the borough such as patrols outside schools,
weapon sweeps in high risk areas which have resulted in large numbers of weapons seized,
intelligence led stop and search, social services referrals for young people judged at risk.
We are also supporting numerous third sector organisations in Lambeth to secure funding
through the Mayor’s Young Londoner’s fund to tackle violence against young people. We are

Page 19

focussing on supporting those projects aligned to our 10 year public health vision that will use
the expertise and skill of our community organisations to deliver more work in Lambeth to help
our young people.

7. Councillor Mohamed Jaser
To: Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment and New Homes, Councillor Matthew
Bennett
South Lambeth Estate – Affordability
Following the planning committee in May can I please receive an update on timescales
regarding the regeneration of South Lambeth Estate – especially given the high need for the
additional social housing the scheme will deliver?
Party: Labour
Answer: The partial rebuilding of the South Lambeth Estate by Homes for Lambeth is one of
six estate regeneration projects that the council is taking forward. The regeneration
programme was proposed by the Housing Commission in 2011-12 to address a significant
shortfall in funds for the Lambeth Housing Standard and to deliver better places to live for
Lambeth council tenants. By delivering estate regeneration through a wholly owned council
company, Homes for Lambeth, we are rebuilding estates without involving a private developer
and making sure the needs of our council tenants and the thousands of families on Lambeth’s
waiting list are put first.
The rebuilding of South Lambeth estate by Homes for Lambeth will re-provide all of the
existing 101 homes and build 261 new homes for local residents. Including the retained homes
at Wimborne House, 50% of the homes within the site area will be affordable homes, which
will include replacement homes for existing secure tenants to meet their housing need at
council rent levels, new affordable homes at target rents, new intermediate rent homes and
retained affordable homes in Wimborne House. The scheme will include a range of new
homes at varying rent levels to support the provision of mixed and balanced communities.
Across the whole estate the amount of affordable housing for rent will increase by 150%, with
the number of habitable rooms for affordable housing (the GLA’s preferred methodology)
increasing from the current 280 rooms to 431, or to 527 if the affordable shared ownership
homes are counted.
Following the unanimous vote in the planning committee, we are working closely with Homes
for Lambeth so work can start on phase 1 in April 2019. This first phase of development
provides 100% new council level rent homes for existing tenants to meet their families’ housing
needs. This phase includes 30 new homes which will be constructed on Dorset Road on
existing car parking and hard landscaped areas. This location accommodates new homes
without needing to move existing residents first. In addition, this phase provides a larger and
improved community space for residents and a refurbished entrance to the retained Wimborne
House block.

Page 20

The new homes will meet our Design Principles and will be warm, dry and efficient. Also, the
new homes will be on average 20% larger than the existing homes on the estate. Over 85%
of the new homes will be dual aspect so that they get light and ventilation from more than one
direction. All homes will have secure cycle parking and access to private amenity in the form
of a private garden, balcony or terrace.
The overall regeneration is planned over three phases and expected to complete in 2026, as
each stage of the rebuilding of the estate comes forward the council will seek additional grants,
where available, and work to maximise the amount of additional affordable and council rent
housing that can be delivered at South Lambeth.

8. Councillor Joe Corry-Roake
To: Cabinet Member for Environment and Clean Air, Councillor Claire Holland
Kings Avenue School and Iqra Primary Clean Air Green Screens
Last year, researchers from Kings College and Aether found that more than 800 educational
institutions in London were being exposed to levels of nitrogen dioxide that breached EU legal
limits including Kings Avenue School, Iqra Primary School and Lambeth Academy in Clapham
Common ward.
Following on from the success of the first Lambeth Clean Air Week last year, I welcome the
recent Clean Air Week events and the commitment to put green screens up in schools on
main roads. When will Kings Avenue School and Iqra Primary get their screens and what
measures is the cabinet member taking to address unacceptable levels of air pollution in
schools which are not on main roads?
Party: Labour
Answer:
I would like to thank Cllr Corry-Roake for drawing attention to our recent Clean Air week in
Lambeth which saw hundreds of residents of all backgrounds and ages taking part in events
across the borough aimed at raising awareness about this critical issue. There is nothing more
vital than tackling the dangerous impact of air pollution in our community, which is why
Lambeth Labour made this a central point of our recent successful manifesto and why my
portfolio is now explicitly Environment and Clean Air.
Alongside other measures we have already taken to clean up the borough's air, in relation
specifically to Green Screens:


In addition to the green screens already built at St Helen’s and Corpus Christi Primary
Schools, during 2018/19 Lambeth will also be building green screens at Wyvil, Henry
Fawcett and Loughborough Primary Schools. We are also helping to fund a living wall
at St Anne’s Primary School

Page 21





We are currently determining our 2019-2022 School Green Screen Programme, which
is based on research commissioned by the GLA. The 2019-2022 Programme will be
presented at Cabinet for approval
In addition to building green screens at schools on main roads, Lambeth is working
with schools across the borough to raise awareness and to reduce air pollution
including:
o Participating in the Mayor’s School Air Quality Audit programme
o Providing diffusion tubes to schools to monitor air quality in the second round
of Love Lambeth Air
o Reducing idling by working with 17 other London boroughs on Idling Action
funded by the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund
o Promoting and facilitating sustainable travel to schools through STARS
o Creating ‘School Streets’ at some schools in the borough, which is already
being trialled in Hackney and some other London boroughs. Under this
scheme, the streets around a school temporarily become pedestrians and
cycles only at set times in the morning and afternoon. Vehicles are not
permitted to enter the street between these times unless they have an
exemption

In addition to these measures, we will continue as a council to lobby central government for
them to take real action after years of inertia and failure. This country desperately needs a
new Clean Air Act that uses the full force of national legislation and provides councils with
additional resources to ensure pollution levels are comprehensively and permanently
reduced.

9. Councillor Becca Thackray
To: Cabinet Member for Voluntary sector, Partnerships and Community Safety,
Councillor Jim Dickson
Full Council
In the interests of democracy, accountability and public engagement, will the Labour Group
support a proposal to extend the time available to listen and respond to members of the public
at the start of Full Council Meetings?
Party: Green
Answer: The Constitution allows for people living, working, studying or using services in the
borough to become involved in Council, committee and sub-committee meetings in the
following ways: a. submitting public notice questions; b. Petitions; c. Deputations; and, d.
Speaking at meetings.
At Full Council meetings, members of the public can submit Public Notice Questions (PNQs),
present a deputation or submit a petition via their Councillor. Currently 15 minutes are
allocated to PNQs at Council meetings and 30 minutes are allocated for PNQ’s at other
Committees such as Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Council will consider up to two
deputations at each Ordinary Council meeting and 10 minutes is set aside for receiving these

Page 22

deputations. All Councillors have the opportunity to ask questions at any ordinary Council
meeting and a period of 25 minutes is set aside at each meeting for Council questions.
If Cllr Thackray has suggestions to improve this process, then these can be considered by the
Council’s Constitutional Working Group, a cross party group of Councillors and Officers set
up to review the Council’s Constitution and Rules of Procedure and to make recommendations
to Full Council.
10. Councillor Marianna Masters
To: Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Jonathan Bartley
Bin Collections
At the recent election, Green party candidates promised to protect weekly bin collections.
However, Jonathan Bartley is on record as saying he is in favour of scrapping them. Can Cllr
Bartley clear up the confusion - do Lambeth Greens back Labour's manifesto commitment to
maintain a full weekly bin collection?
Party: Labour
Answer: I am not, and have never been in favour of scrapping weekly bin collections. Sadly a
number of Labour councillors were taken in by Lambeth Labour’s misinformation over bin
collections during the election period. I understand however that residents set them straight.
Please do watch the Daily Politics interview this misinformation was based on. We will always
be honest with residents and we won't purposefully misrepresent the positions of our political
opponents. If we have printed something incorrect in our literature, we will follow this up with
a clarification. It is only fair that Labour do the same regarding this inaccurate, and often
repeated, statement about bins.
I would also be happy to send you a link to our manifesto which contains a commitment to
maintain weekly bin collections. This follows actions by Labour councils up and down the
country that have scrapped weekly collections.
We will be holding the council to account so that this commitment isn’t broken in the way that
the commitment to “Free swimming for every resident at specific times and for under 18s and
over 60s at all times” was abandoned. Or, the promise made to residents of Cressingham
Gardens: that the council was “not interested in doing anything to the estate that doesn’t
command the confidence and support of its residents,” which was also broken. We will always
stick by our promises.

11. Councillor Nicole Griffiths
To: Cabinet Member for Environment, Councillor Claire Holland
Pesticide Free Pledge

Page 23

Could the leader of the council confirm when the council and all service providers operating
on Lambeth Council’s behalf will sign up (as Cllr Peck has) to the Pesticide Free Pledge and
stop spraying weed killers such as Glyphosate?
Party: Green
Answer: Grounds maintenance services covering parks, open spaces and cemeteries do not
use pesticides or herbicides as part of routine operations. Weeds are dealt with using a
combination of hot water treatment; flame guns; mechanical weed-rippers; strimming and
hand-weeding. However, the treatment of Japanese Knotweed still requires the use of
chemicals.
However, maintenance of the public highway still requires the use of chemicals to control weed
growth. The council and its service providers are aware of the concerns that have been raised
with respect to the continued use of Glyphosate. Although research into the impacts of
glyphosate have been relatively inconclusive, it is important to recognise the concerns and
regularly review alternative approaches.
Veolia is the current provider of weed control services on the public highway on behalf of the
council and their primary method is to use glyphosate. The use of glyphosate is cost effective
and its efficient use helps maintain clean and weed free streets as far as practically possible.
However, Veolia also recognise the concerns that have been raised with respect to the use of
Glyphosate and have been working with the council to reduce the use of Glyphosate. State of
the art equipment will be used to only spay the chemicals when weeds are detected which will
reduce the amount sprayed on the street.
We are also working in partnership with a local community group, Vaxuhall Grove/Bonnington
Square, to test the efficacy of alternative solutions. In May 2018, in consultation with local
residents, the streets in this area were treated with a product called Foamstream (in
partnership with the supplier Weedingtech).
Foamstream Is made up of natural plant oils and sugars and is applied with hot water.
We are currently monitoring the impact of the application and will be undertaking a cost benefit
analysis to determine whether this could be used in the future. It is intended to carry out two
further applications this year so that the full effect, both immediate and long term, can be
measured.

12. Councillor Fred Cowell
To: Cabinet Member for Equalities, Councillor Sonia Winifred
Lambeth Country Show
Every year the Lambeth Country show is enjoyed by thousands of residents from across
Lambeth and all over London. For the first time this year the show has had security fencing
and security searches of people entering the fair following advice from the police. This is a

Page 24

significant change but in the context of greater security threats and risks of anti-social
behaviour one which may need to be taken.
Can we please get a commitment to publish a full impact assessment of the experience of
putting up the fence so that the disruption to the park in set up time, damage to the ground
and the effect on the park can be fully assessed?
Party: Labour
Answer: As you say, the Lambeth Country show is a beloved event enjoyed by many people
every year which celebrates the very best of the city and countryside.
The decisions to make changes to the Country Show were not taken lightly but with
consultation with the police and other partners. The new security arrangements for Lambeth
Country Show are being put in place following specific police advice and intelligence, to ensure
everybody remains safe and enjoys the event. The council’s insurer also requested additional
measures in order to insure the event. The current national terrorism threat level has also had
to be taken into account.
The building of the fence will take 2 full days to complete starting on Sunday 15th July to
Monday 16th July. During the build, access through the park will not be restricted with
pathways remaining open until the park closes at dusk on Friday 20th July. All park activities
such as tennis, rugby, BMX and cricket will also not be disrupted during this time. During the
build, there will be certain areas of the park that will be cordoned off to deem it a safe
construction area for large infrastructure such as marquees and stages. The only time period
that the show site will be closed off to the public is from 7:30am - 12 noon on Saturday and
Sunday. The public can then enter the event site free of charge from this time if they wish to
attend the event, but only through the two designated entrances. All public pathways will be
open through the park from 7:30am on Monday 23rd July with zones cordons in construction
areas as and when required. Overall the occupation of the park for the event is no longer than
in previous years lasting from Sunday 15th July through to Thursday 26th July.
There will be a full post-event evaluation. The whole events strategy will also be reviewed in
September.

13. Councillor Martin Tiedemann
To: Cabinet Member for Environment and Clean Air, Councillor Claire Holland
Residents in Brixton Hill are experiencing problems with waste collection where they live
above shopping parades, particularly New Park Road. Can the cabinet member review the
provision for refuse and recycling in these instances and see if a more effective approach can
be taken?
Party: Labour

Page 25

Answer: Lambeth has in recent years taken a number of steps forward successfully
to increase recycle rates in the borough and this will remain a priority in the years ahead,
despite deep government cuts to the council's budget.
The collection of waste from flats above shops does pose a number of challenges, including
the need to keep the footway free of bins means that waste is put out in bags, attracting foxes
and creating litter. The change over in tenants in these properties, which tend to be privately
rented, also means that establishing a regular pattern of recycling behaviour is more difficult.
However, we have been working with our waste contractor Veolia on a trial aimed at improving
recycling in this type of accommodation. This includes introducing small green bins, similar to
the yellow grit bins, which residents can use for their recycling bags. As part of this we are
providing properties with posters containing all the necessary information which have been
put up in interior hallways, ensuring that new residents have access to the information they
need whenever they need it. We're also introducing smaller packs of recycling sacks which
will fit through letterboxes so that residents can access the recycling service and use it
properly. General refuse is collected daily each morning, and residents are encouraged to put
their waste out at the correct time before the collection takes place to reduce the number of
bags on the pavement during the busier parts of the day.
The trial has so far produced positive results. Recycling has increased from flats above shops
in areas where the green boxes have been situated. We are yet to receive the first batch of
smaller packs of bags, but we expect this will further increase recycling. Following the end of
the trial, we expect to roll out this new approach across all parades of flats above shops that
are not currently in a timed collections area, including Brixton Hill and New Park Road later
this year.

14. Councillor Nicole Griffiths
To: Cabinet Member for Environment and Clean Air, Councillor Claire Holland
ULEZ
Could the cabinet member for Environment and Clean Air let Council know what Lambeth is
doing to lobby the Mayor of London to extend the ULEZ to cover the whole of the Borough
and improve Lambeth’s Air Pollution level?
Party: Green
Answer: As mentioned in my answer to Cllr Corry-Roake, tackling poor air quality is a priority
for this administration and we intend to build on the good work undertaken in recent years to
make our transport infrastructure as clean and green as possible, as well as expand residents’
access to alternative forms of environmentally friendly transport.
We have already successfully lobbied the Mayor of London for a Clean Air bus corridor on
Brixton Road and Streatham High Road and delivered the expansion of the Santander bike
scheme to Brixton.

Page 26

On the ULEZ:






In our response to the ULEZ consultation in February 2018, we asked that the UltraLow Emission Zone (ULEZ) was extended London-wide for all vehicles
The Mayor has announced the ULEZ will be London-wide for heavy vehicles and to
the North and South Circular for light vehicles
In his recently published Environment Strategy the Mayor has explained why it is not
possible to extend the ULEZ further than the North and South Circular for light vehicles.
However in the strategy he has also written “targeted local measures such as local
road closures, vehicle restrictions or other interventions could be equally effective and
likely to bring areas of non-compliance into compliance in a quicker timeframe than
expansion of the ULEZ to cover light vehicles in outer London”. I am writing to the
Mayor to ask for a meeting to discuss these other measures to find joint solutions to
ensure all Lambeth citizens, regardless of whether they are in the north or the south of
the borough, breathe clean air
As per the Mayor’s announcement, all heavy vehicles will become ULEZ compliant by
October 2020, including buses. In my letter I am asking that Lambeth is prioritised so
all buses in our borough become low emission as early as possible before October
2020

15. Councillor Jackie Meldrum
To: Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Councillor Sonia Winifred
DisabledGo
Lambeth has worked with DisabledGo to provide a database of several hundred council,
health & school buildings throughout the borough. Each venue on the database has detailed
access information to enable disabled people to plan visits knowing what access issues to
expect when they get there.
Access information is an important tool for helping to enable disabled people to participate
more fully in local community life.
Last year St Thomas’s and other London hospitals had detailed access audits carried out &
published. Business like the London Aquarium are also listed on the Disabledgo web site:
https://www.disabledgo.com
In this ongoing age of austerity how do you see the council taking the Disabledgo project
forward?
Party: Labour
Answer: Lambeth Equality Commission was launched in October 2016. The commission
understood from the very start that some of our communities are worse off than others and
least able to take advantage of the opportunities offered by growth in the borough. Disabled
people were one of these groups. On Wednesday 27th June the Council delivered a Disability

Page 27

Engagement event to provide the opportunity of bringing the voices of disabled people to the
table. The disabled residents in attendance spoke of the barriers that they face on a day to
day basis and about the terrible impact of benefit changes. They told us they often did not
feel seen or heard when accessing services.
To date 306 venues have been assessed so far by DisabledGo, including the refurbished
Town Hall. The Civic Centre will be assessed later this year. In the last 12 months 3,500 users
have consulted access guides for buildings in Lambeth. Officers from the Policy and
Partnerships, and Consultation and Engagement team met with DisableGo earlier this month
to discuss how we can increase traffic to the website even further and get maximum
value. This will include asking DisableGo to invite local disabled people to take part in venue
assessments with a view to developing employability skills (this is part of their service offer).
DisabledGo presented at, and held an information stall at a disability themed engagement
event on 27 June 2018 to raise awareness of their local guides.
The Council has an important role to play providing leadership on disability. We also recognise
that, to do this convincingly, the organisation needs to make decisions and deliver services
that reflect a good understanding of issues affecting disabled people and what is important to
them. It is our wish to continue delivering accessible services to the disabled
community. Before the current council's contract with DisabledGo expires in 2020, the
organisation will conduct an evaluation to inform whether to continue the investment in this
service or pursue other ways to make the borough’s businesses, public services, community
venues and high streets more accessible for all.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Council,

Agenda Item 8

18 July 2018

Council Motions
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corproate Resources: Jackie Belton
Contact for enquiries:
wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Wayne Chandai, Head of the Chief Executive’s Office and Democratic Services Manager, 020
7926 0029
Report summary
Motions and amendments submitted by Councillors, in accordance with Council’s Committee
Rules and Procedures are set out below.
Key to shading:
Bold – additions
Strikethrough – deletions
Motion 1: Green
To ballot residents on, the Cressingham Gardens Estate, the Fenwick Estate and the Central
Hill Estate
Council notes that:
(i) The Mayor of London's report 'Better Homes for Local People' which was published in
February 2018 and contained guidelines for balloting all residents in housing where demolition
is planned. According to the Mayor's office "the guide seeks to empower tenants, leaseholders
and freeholders in developing regeneration plans" and "forms a key part of the Mayor’s broader
calls for social housing residents to have a bigger say in the future of their estates following last
year’s horrific fire at Grenfell Tower."
(ii) Labour’s national and London conferences supported balloting residents on all ongoing and
future regeneration projects and that the agreed 2017 Conference motion stated that such
ballots should be binding and “follow a comprehensive programme which fully involves residents
and their representatives in understanding the economic, social and environmental
consequences of any proposals”.
(iii) Vauxhall Constituency Labour Party passed a motion in January 2018 calling for the
Lambeth Labour election manifesto to ballot residents living on estates that are due to be
‘regenerated’.

Page 30
(iv) Labour leader Jeremy Corbyn called for estates to be balloted in his 2017 Party conference
speech saying "After Grenfell we must think again about what are called regeneration schemes.
Regeneration is a much-abused word. Too often what it really means is forced gentrification and
social cleansing, as private developers move in and tenants and leaseholders are moved out"
and so under a Labour Government "councils will have to win a ballot of existing tenants and
leaseholders before any redevelopment scheme can take place."
Council further notes that
(i) It was stated at Lambeth Council's Cabinet meeting on 23 March 2017 that 55% of council
tenants on Central Hill appeared to support the proposal to completely rebuild their estate.
However, a subsequent council report authorised by Sue Foster, Strategic Director,
Neighbourhoods and Growth to the council's Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3rd May
2017 stated clearly "The consultation was not a ballot.". Council also notes that the 55% figure
was strongly disputed by residents and was not backed up by evidence from the council, which
created a huge amount of distrust amongst residents.
(ii) Proper consultation and balloting residents is complicated and should therefore be
undertaken carefully. There are a multiplicity of tenures on estates – council (including
temporary) and private tenants, leaseholders (both resident and absentee landlords including
agencies and companies)) – whose interests may vary; and that this must be properly
recognised by not allowing the interests of one group to override another’s.
(iii) Not only must the consequences of the ballot result be fully understood by all concerned,
but the process needs to be – and be seen to be – independent of all those involved in the
regeneration project, all parties must have an equality of campaigning and financial resources,
the questions need to be clear and agreed by all parties, and the outcome of the ballot must be
transparent and accountable.

Council therefore resolves to ballot all the residents of the Central Hill Estate, Cressingham
Gardens Estate and the Fenwick Estate based on the principles on (i) and (ii) above and notes
that along with giving some control over their future back to the residents of those estates, if the
residents on Central Hill voted for demolition then this would give the council access to
additional funds from the Mayor of London.
Amendment 1: Labour
To ballot residents on, the Cressingham Gardens Estate, the Fenwick Estate and the Central
Hill Estate
Council notes that:
Lambeth is committed to placing residents at the heart of the decision-making
process, as part of our plans to build more and better homes to help tackle the
housing crisis. That includes providing new homes for residents currently living in poorquality homes on some of our estates that we cannot afford to refurbish and providing
additional council homes for families on the waiting list.
(i) The Mayor of London's report 'Better Homes for Local People' which was published in
February 2018 and contained guidelines for balloting all residents in housing where demolition
is planned, subject to further consultation which closed in April 2018. According to the
Mayor's office "the guide seeks to empower tenants, leaseholders and freeholders in developing

Page 31
regeneration plans" and "forms a key part of the Mayor’s broader calls for social housing
residents to have a bigger say in the future of their estates following last year’s horrific fire at
Grenfell Tower."
(ii) Labour’s national and London conferences supported balloting residents on all ongoing and
future regeneration projects and that the agreed 2017 Conference motion stated that such
ballots should be binding and “follow a comprehensive programme which fully involves residents
and their representatives in understanding the economic, social and environmental
consequences of any proposals”.
(iii) Vauxhall Constituency Labour Party passed a motion in January 2018 calling for the
Lambeth Labour election manifesto to ballot residents living on estates that are due to be
‘regenerated’.
(iv) Labour leader Jeremy Corbyn called for estates to be balloted in his 2017 Party conference
speech saying "After Grenfell we must think again about what are called regeneration schemes.
Regeneration is a much-abused word. Too often what it really means is forced gentrification and
social cleansing, as private developers move in and tenants and leaseholders are moved out"
and so under a Labour Government "councils will have to win a ballot of existing tenants and
leaseholders before any redevelopment scheme can take place."
(v) That this council supports the policy set out by the leader of the Labour party, which
is why Lambeth’s estate regeneration schemes are being undertaken by a 100% councilowned company not private developers and why we have guaranteed no net loss of
social housing, full rights to remain for all council tenants and a fair deal for leaseholders
and freeholders. Labour party policy on ballots applies to all future schemes under a
Labour government, when councils would have the funding, flexibility and powers to
build and refurbish social housing that is denied to them by this Conservative
government.
Council further notes that
(i) Lambeth has been engaging with residents on six estates since 2014, holding
extensive consultation and engagement on how to deliver better homes where
refurbishment is unaffordable. It was stated at Lambeth Council's Cabinet meeting on 23
March 2017 that 55% of council tenants on Central Hill appeared to did support the proposal to
completely rebuild their estate, with 34% of tenants being opposed to rebuilding, as set out
in the independent report presented to Cabinet. However, a subsequent council report
authorised by Sue Foster, Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods and Growth to the council's
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3rd May 2017 stated clearly "The consultation was not a
ballot.". Council also notes that the 55% figure was strongly disputed by residents and was not
backed up by evidence from the council, which created a huge amount of distrust amongst
residents.
(ii) Proper consultation and balloting residents is complicated and should therefore be
undertaken carefully. There are a multiplicity of tenures on estates – council (including
temporary) and private tenants, leaseholders (both resident and absentee landlords including
agencies and companies)) – whose interests may vary; and that this must be properly
recognised by not allowing the interests of one group to override another’s.
(iii) The council set out the need to balance these interests, as well as those of the wider
community and of local residents directly affected, in its response to the Mayor’s
consultation on a proposed new funding condition to require resident ballots in estate

Page 32
regeneration. The council recommended incorporating three guiding principles to
underpin a new, London-wide ballot process for residents living on estates earmarked
for regeneration. They are: Guaranteed rights for resident with an approved key
guarantee offer for all affected residents; a voice for residents on local housing waiting
lists, weighted to those most likely to directly benefit from a programme of additional
council housing in their local area; and the need to provide transparent and deliverable
options to residents.

(iii) Not only must the consequences of the ballot result be fully understood by all concerned,
but the process needs to be – and be seen to be – independent of all those involved in the
regeneration project, all parties must have an equality of campaigning and financial resources,
the questions need to be clear and agreed by all parties, and the outcome of the ballot must be
transparent and accountable.
(iv) That the council’s response to the Mayor’s consultation supported the use of
independent bodies throughout the consultation process, not just for ballots, as
Lambeth council has done on each of the six estates currently going through this
process.
Council resolves to continue to place residents at the heart of the decision -making
process, by working with the Mayor of London on his estate regeneration
principles and fully implementing his recommendations when publish ed.
Council therefore resolves to ballot all the residents of the Central Hill Estate, Cressingham
Gardens Estate and the Fenwick Estate based on the principles on (i) and (ii) above and notes
that along with giving some control over their future back to the residents of those estates, if the
residents on Central Hill voted for demolition then this would give the council access to
additional funds from the Mayor of London.
Council supports the ambitious programme in the Labour Party’s Green Paper,
Housing for the Many, which sets out how a Labour Government would tackle the
Tory housing crisis by investing in social and council housing and providing
councils with access to new powers, flexibility and funding to provide decent homes
that are currently denied to them by this government.
_______________________

Motion 2: Labour
70th Anniversary of the National Health Service
This Council:
Celebrates the fact that 70 years ago, the Labour Government established the National Health
Service
Notes:
 That the NHS is respected across the world as a pioneering model of delivering
healthcare
 That under this Conservative government, the NHS is in crisis with record waiting times
and severe pressure on services

Page 33




That in Lambeth, two of the biggest hospitals serving residents, King’s College and St
George’s, are now in financial special measures as they spend £200 million a year more
on care than they get from the government.
That the Conservative government has cut Lambeth council’s government funding by
56%, placing significant pressure on adult social care services which creates further
pressure on the NHS
That the Local Government Association estimates that adult social care services across
the country face a budget gap that will grow to £2 billion by 2020, meaning that essential
care for elderly and vulnerable people isn’t being properly funded

Further notes:





The Government has imposed a 10% cut on public health making it harder to prevent
disease and injury putting more pressure on the NHS.
Government tax credit and benefit changes are impoverishing more people leading to
increasing rates of ill health and NHS demand.
The important role played by the Windrush Generation, also celebrating their 70th
anniversary, in establishing and sustaining the NHS.
That one third of London's NHS doctors are from overseas and that immigrants from the
EU and beyond are vital to health care and research.

Believes:



That the Government’s recent announcement of an increase in funding is welcome, after
years of cuts, but is insufficient to meet the needs of patients
That increasing funding to the NHS while continuing to cut budgets for social care is
wholly counterproductive

Resolves:


To write to the Secretary of State and to local MPs asking that the Government:
- works with those in all parties to find a way of resolving the NHS’s continuing funding
crisis
- makes up the funding gap in social care identified by the Local Government
Association
- support Lambeth’s plans for integrating and funding health and social care provision
in the future

Amendment1: Green
70th Anniversary of the National Health Service
This Council:
Celebrates the fact that 70 years ago, the Labour Government established the National Health
Service
Notes:
 That the NHS is respected across the world as a pioneering model of delivering
healthcare
 That under this Conservative government, the NHS is in crisis with record waiting times
and severe pressure on services

Page 34




That in Lambeth, two of the biggest hospitals serving residents, King’s College and St
George’s, are now in financial special measures as they spend £200 million a year more
on care than they get from the government.
That the Conservative government has cut Lambeth council’s government funding by
56%, placing significant pressure on adult social care services which creates further
pressure on the NHS
That the Local Government Association estimates that adult social care services across
the country face a budget gap that will grow to £2 billion by 2020, meaning that essential
care for elderly and vulnerable people isn’t being properly funded

Further notes:





The Government has imposed a 10% cut on public health making it harder to prevent
disease and injury putting more pressure on the NHS.
Government tax credit and benefit changes are impoverishing more people leading to
increasing rates of ill health and NHS demand.
The important role played by the Windrush Generation, also celebrating their 70th
anniversary, in establishing and sustaining the NHS.
That one third of London's NHS doctors are from overseas and that immigrants from the
EU and beyond are vital to health care and research.

Believes:



That the Government’s recent announcement of an increase in funding is welcome, after
years of cuts, but is insufficient to meet the needs of patients
That increasing funding to the NHS while continuing to cut budgets for social care is
wholly counterproductive

Resolves:


To write to the Secretary of State and to local MPs asking that the Government:
- works with those in all parties to find a way of resolving the NHS’s continuing funding
crisis
- makes up the funding gap in social care identified by the Local Government
Association
- support Lambeth’s plans for integrating and funding health and social care provision
in the future
- Support the NHS Reinstatement Bill when it next comes before Parliament
_______________________

Motion 3: Conservative
Celebrating Windrush Day by ending ‘Identity Politics’
It is exciting that the Conservative Government nationally, on behalf of a grateful nation, is
establishing a Windrush Day annually on 22nd June. Windrush Day will celebrate and recognise
the contribution of the Windrush generation and those descended from the men and women
who came to the United Kingdom in 1948 and made their home here.

Page 35
It is the sign of an inclusive, far-sighted Conservative Government that wishes to address past
wrongs and recognise the enormously positive contribution to life in the UK made by people
from the Caribbean, many of whom are Lambeth residents.
However, as community leaders, Labour councillors and the wealthy Labour establishment in
Lambeth must make a distinction between recognising and celebrating our diversity, and the
insidious and self-destructive values espoused in far-Left ‘identity politics’. Identity politics
blights relationships by seeking to make all negative aspects of life for our communities in the
UK the ‘fault’ of mainstream society. Identity politics asserts that everyone not white or male is a
victim, and that all white people are racist, and that the history of Britain as a country admired
across the world for the opportunities and freedoms that it provides is overshadowed by historic
acts of colonial oppression.
So whilst many residents may have been victims of small or large acts of discrimination,
establishing Windrush Day is the country reaching a hand out to one of our communities, and
asking to be forgiven.
Council agrees to do its part to help the Windrush community by working tirelessly with those
who provide local services to ensure that the outcomes sought by residents are reflected in the
services provided, including but not limited to lowering the high tax burden on residents that has
held back residents with aspirations for themselves and their families for decades, as well as
improving adult and social care, mental health outcomes, and policing.
Council also agrees to treat residents with honesty and respect by actually listening to them, to
stop pretending to help them with commissions set up for Labour party political purposes, to end
the stream of divisive taxpayer-funded Labour propaganda, and to run services with the same
level of competence as nearby Conservative boroughs.

Amendment 1: Green
We are pleased that a Windrush Day is being established as an annual celebration taking
place on the It is exciting that the Conservative Government nationally, on behalf of a grateful
nation, is establishing a Windrush Day annually on 22nd June. Windrush Day will celebrate and
recognise the contribution of the Windrush generation and those descended from the men,
women and those who self-identify as neither, who came to the United Kingdom in 1948 and
made their home here.
It is the sign of an inclusive, far-sighted Conservative Government that wishes to address past
wrongs and recognise the enormously positive contribution to life in the UK made by people
from the Caribbean, many of whom are Lambeth residents.
However, as community leaders, Labour councillors and the wealthy Labour establishment in
Lambeth must make a distinction between recognising and celebrating our diversity, and the
insidious and self-destructive values espoused in far-Left ‘identity politics’. Identity politics
blights relationships by seeking to make all negative aspects of life for our communities in the
UK the ‘fault’ of mainstream society. Identity politics asserts that everyone not white or male is a
victim, and that all white people are racist, and that the history of Britain as a country admired
across the world for the opportunities and freedoms that it provides is overshadowed by historic
acts of colonial oppression.

Page 36
So whilst many residents may have been victims of small or large acts of discrimination,
establishing Windrush Day is the country reaching a hand out to one of our communities, and
asking to be forgiven.
Council agrees to do its part to help the Windrush community by working tirelessly with those
who provide local services to ensure that the outcomes sought by residents are reflected in the
services provided. , including but not limited to lowering the high tax burden on residents that
has held back residents with aspirations for themselves and their families for decades, as well
as improving adult and social care, mental health outcomes, and policing.
Council also agrees to treat residents with honesty and respect by actually listening to them, to
stop pretending to help them with commissions set up for Labour party political purposes, to end
the stream of divisive taxpayer-funded Labour propaganda, and to run services with the same
level of competence as nearby Conservative boroughs.
Council also believes Windrush Day should be a bank holiday and will write to the
Government urging it to make it so.

_______________________

Page 37

Council

Agenda Item 9.a

18 July 2018

Appointment of Chief Executive
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Director, Human Resurces and Organisational Development, Dean
Shoesmith
Portfolio: Leader of the Council: Councillor Lib Peck
Contact for enquiries:
wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Wayne Chandai, Head of the Chief Executive’s Office and Democratic Services Manager, 020
7926 0029
Report summary
This report seeks formal approval of the recommendation by the Appointments Committee to
appoint Andrew Travers as the permanent Chief Executive, following the recruitment process
carried out during May/June 2018.
Finance summary
The post of the Chief Executive, is a fully funded position within the current establishment and
the cost of this appointment will be met from within existing resources.
Recommendations
(1)

To approve the recommendations made by the Appointments Committee in respect
of the appointment of the Council’s new Chief Executive.
a. To appoint Andrew Travers as the Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service) of
Lambeth Council.

Page 38

1.

Context

1.1

There is a legal requirement under section 4 (1) (a) Local Government and Housing Act
1989 for the Council to designate one of its officers as the head of paid service. Under
Para 4 (1) of Schedule 1 Part II Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)
Regulations 2001). Council approval must be obtained before an offer of employment is
made to appoint the Head of Paid Service.

1.2

Under the Council’s Constitution (Part 3 Section 7 Officer Employment Procedure Rules)
the full Council will approve the appointment of the Chief Executive following the
recommendation of such appointment by the Appointments Committee. This is a
mandatory requirement imposed by the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations
2001.

1.3

This report seeks approval from full Council to appoint the Council’s new Chief
Executive.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The appointment of the Chief Executive is the responsibility of full Council following
recommendation by the Appointments Committee.

2.2

By law, an appointment of Chief Executive and chief officers or deputy chief officer can
only be made where there is no “well-founded objection” from a member of the Cabinet.
This process was carried out and no objections were raised by Cabinet Members.

3.

Finance

3.1

The post of Chief Executive is a fully funded position within the current establishment
and as such the cost of this appointment can be met from within existing resources.

3.2

There are no capital implications arising as a direct result of this proposal.

4. Legal and Democracy
4.1

Pursuant to Section 8 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 the Secretary of
State has issued the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations that mandate
Councils to incorporate certain prescribed standing orders. One of the mandatory
requirements reads as follows:
Authority with Leader and Cabinet Executive
(1) Where a committee, sub-committee or officer is discharging, on behalf of the
authority, the function of the appointment or dismissal of an officer designated as the
head of the authority's paid service, the authority must approve that appointment before

Page 39
an offer of appointment is made to him or, as the case may be, must approve that
dismissal before notice of dismissal is given to him.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

Not applicable.

6.

Risk management

6.1

There are no risks associated with the recommendations outlined in this report.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

An EIA is not relevant for this report.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1

The key dates in the recruitment timetable are set out below.
Appointments Sub Committee –
Interviews

20 June 2018

Approval of appointment by Full Council

18th July 2018

Confirmed offer of appointment –

19th July 2018 following Full Council approval

Page 40
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Finance
Alison McKane
Maria Burton
Councillor Lib Peck
Dean Shoesmith

Lambeth
Directorate/division
or partner
Corporate Resources
Director of Legal and
HR
Democratic Services
Leader of the Council
Human Resources

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Date Sent

Date
Received

3/07/18
3/07/18

9/07/18

3/07/18
3/07/18
3/07/18

3/07/18
9/07/18
06/07/18

Comments in
para:

4

n/a
n/a
6/07/18
No
No
N/A
N/A

Background information

Appointments Committee 20 June 2018

Appendices

None

Page 41

Agenda Item 9.b

Corporate Committee 21 March 2018
Report title: Corporate Committee Report 2017/18
Wards: All
Portfolio: Deputy Leader (Finance and Resources): Councillor Imogen Walker
Report Authorised by: Jackie Belton: Strategic Director for Corporate Resources
Contact for enquiries: Charlotte Bilsland, Interim Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud, Corporate
Resources, 0207 926 2993, cbilsland@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This is the 12th Annual Report of the Corporate Committee which is to be submitted to the Council
Meeting on 06 June 2018. It provides a summary of the Corporate Committee’s activities during the
year to fulfil its responsibilities as set out in its terms of reference.

Finance summary
This report summarises the Committee’s oversight of the Council’s financial administration for the year
2017/18. The report does not give rise to any additional capital or revenue financial implications. Actions
to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and Council policies will be undertaken within the existing
budgets.

Recommendations
1.

To consider, amend and agree the Corporate Committee’s Annual Report for 2017/18 as set out
in Appendix 1 and to recommend it to full Council for approval.

1

Page 42
1.

Context

1.1

The Corporate Committee’s Terms of Reference states that the Corporate Committee is required
to: “approve, for submission to Council, an annual report of the activities of the Committee in
discharging its various audit functions”.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The draft Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2017/18 is included at Appendix 1 for
consideration and approval by Corporate Committee.

2.1

The Corporate Committee’s Terms of Reference, was last reviewed and updated as part of the
annual review of the Council’s Constitution 2017/18 which was approved by Council on 19 April
2017 and 18 October 2017. The Terms of Reference sets out the Corporate Committee’s remit
as the Council’s Audit Committee, which includes oversight of the following for areas:











2.2

The Corporate Committee’s Terms of Reference also include a number of non-audit
responsibilities including the following where periodic reports are received and considered by the
Committee:













2.3

Internal Audit and Investigation functions, including the consideration of strategies and
policies, the annual assurance report and regular reports on completed work and the
performance of the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Service;
Annual statement of accounts and accounting policies;
Annual Governance Statement;
External Audit annual letter and related reports;
Risk management arrangements;
Corporate Governance arrangements;
Whistle blowing arrangements;
Bribery Act arrangements;
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000; and,
Referrals from other Committees.

Approve the Council's Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement;
Approve the Council Tax base and the National Non-Domestic Rate base;
Reports produced by the Chief Finance Officer;
Reports on personnel-related issues and Health and safety at work;
Adverse Local Government Ombudsman reports;
Adverse Housing Ombudsman reports;
Trustee of Trusts;
Elections;
Nominations for Freedom of the Borough;
Orders for designated public places;
Rush Common Act 1806; and,
Naming of local streets and buildings.

During the municipal year 2017/18, the Corporate Committee met on five occasions:




22 June 2017;
28 September 2017;
29 November 2017;
2

Page 43



23 January 2018; and,
21 March 2018.

2.4

The draft Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2017/18 at Appendix 1 incorporates matters
which are covered elsewhere on the same agenda for the meeting on 21 March 2018 to ensure
that the report which is then presented to Council represents the Corporate Committee’s work for
the whole municipal year.

3.
3.1

Finance

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

Regulation 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 sets out the Council’s responsibility for
ensuring that it has a sound system of internal control which:

This report summarises the Committee’s oversight of the Council’s financial administration for the
year 2017/18. The report does not give rise to any additional capital or revenue financial
implications. Actions to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and Council policies will be
undertaken within the existing budgets.

(a)
(b)
(c)

facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and
objectives;
ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; and,
includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

4.2

Regulation 5 requires the Council to ensure that it undertakes an effective internal audit to
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

4.3

There were no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

All members of the Corporate Committee were consulted on this report and their comments have
been incorporated into the report.

6.

Risk management

6.1

An ineffective audit committee could result in inadequate governance, risk and control
arrangements remaining unchallenged, resulting in failure to meet the Council’s objectives,
increased risks of fraud, waste or error and the potential for adverse criticism from the external
auditor or other agencies.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

Not applicable.

8.

Community safety

8.1

Not applicable.

3

Page 44
9.

Organisational implications

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10. Timetable for implementation
Not applicable.

4

Page 45
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor A Garden
Councillor N Sabharwal
Councillor M Atkins
Councillor J Holborn
Councillor T Briggs
Councillor Imogen Walker
Jackie Belton, Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance and
Property
Alison McKane, Director of
Legal Services and HR
David Rose, Democratic
Services
Finance Clearance

Lambeth directorate/
division or partner
Chair, Corporate Committee
Vice-Chair, Corporate
Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Member, Corporate Committee
Deputy Leader (Finance and
Resources)

28.02.18

Date
Received
07.03.18

28.02.18

For info

28.02.18
28.02.18
28.02.18

For info
For info
For info

07.03.18

12.03.18

Corporate Resources

28.02.18

06.03.18

Finance

28.02.18

06.03.18

Corporate Resources

28.02.18

08.03.18

Corporate Resources

28.02.18

05.03.18

Corporate Resources: Finance

28.02.18

01.03.18

Date Sent

Comments
in para:

Throughout

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
08.03.18
09.03.18
No
No
N/A
N/A
Agendas and Minutes of the meetings of Corporate
Committee in 2017/178
1. Draft Corporate Committee Annual Report 2017/18

5

Page 46
Appendix 1

London Borough of Lambeth
Corporate Committee Annual Report 2017/18

Chair’s introduction
I am very pleased to present this Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2017/18 to both the Corporate
Committee and to full Council.
The report shows that the Corporate Committee has undertaken its role effectively; covering a wide
range of topics and ensuring that appropriate governance and control arrangements are in place to
protect the interests of the Council and the community generally. We also considered reviews which
assessed the effectiveness of the Corporate Committee, in its Audit Committee role, against published
best practice along with that of the Council’s Internal Audit and Counter Fraud functions.
The Corporate Committee, in its role as the Council’s Audit Committee, has received regular reports
from officers on a wide range of governance, risk and control matters and has provided effective
challenge where improvements in those arrangements have been required. We have considered and
agreed the internal audit and counter fraud policies, strategies and work plans and received regular
reports from the Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud on completed audits, advisory reviews and
investigations which have enabled us to challenge officers where improvements are required.
We have also received and considered reports from the Council’s external auditor (KPMG) on the
financial statements for the Council and Pension Fund.
I would like to thank all the Members who served on the Corporate Committee during 2017/18. My
thanks also go to the Council officers, who have reported to and supported the work of the Corporate
Committee over the past 12 months, and our external auditors who have supported the work of the
Corporate Committee over the past year.

Councillor Adrian Garden
Chair of the Corporate Committee

6

Page 47
1. Terms of Reference and membership
The Terms of Reference of the Corporate (Audit) Committee are set out in the Council’s Constitution
(see Part 2, section 1C).
The main purpose of the Corporate Committee is to provide effective oversight for the Council’s
governance, risk and control arrangements, including adherence to the requirements of the updated
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to prevent,
detect and take action on fraud and corruption and the proper stewardship of public funds.
The Corporate Committee’s terms of reference was last reviewed and updated as part of the annual
review of the Council’s Constitution 2017/18 which was approved by Council on 19 April 2017 and 18
October 2017.
The Corporate Committee met formally five times during 2017/18. The Corporate Committee will also
meet informally in April 2018 to consider its work programme for 2018/19.
During 2017/18 our Committee’s membership was as follows:
 Councillor Adrian Garden (Chair)
 Councillors Neil Sabharwal, Mary Atkins, Jack Holborn and Tim Briggs.
Councillors Bernard Gentry, Claire Holland, Luke Murphy, Louise Nathanson and Andrew Wilson were
designated as the Committee’s substitute members during 2017/18.

2. The Corporate Committee’s work programme
We agree a comprehensive work programme each year covering all aspects of our Terms of Reference
and review this at each meeting. Items can be added if the Corporate Committee feels it appropriate.
Having received reports the Corporate Committee also asks officers to provide further reports on action
taken to implement improvements recommended by the Corporate Committee.
The work undertaken by the Corporate Committee during 2017/18 fell into the following key areas:
 Receiving regular updates on completed audits and investigations;
 Receiving the Annual Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Report which summarised the adequacy
of the Council’s control environment for 2016/17;
 Reviewing the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund along with the
Annual Governance Statement which assessed the Council’s overall governance arrangements;
 Receiving the work plan and reports of the Council’s external auditors;
 Reviewing and approving the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy, Charter and Work Plans
for 2018/19;
 Reviewing the Corporate Risk Registers and the Risk Management Strategy and Policy;
 Receiving reports on the management of risks in Adults and Children’s Services;
 Reviewing and approving the Council’s policies for counter fraud, bribery, whistle blowing and
money laundering;
 Receiving reports on performance in respect of complaints, Members Enquiries and information
requests (under the Freedom of Information Act and Data Protection Act);
 Reviewing treasury management performance reports;
 Reviewing and approving Rush Common consent applications; and
 Receiving regular reports on Housing fire safety.
7

Page 48
Annex A sets out all of the reports which the Corporate Committee received and considered during
2017/18.

3. Actions requested
The Corporate Committee made a number of special interventions when considering the agenda items
and maintained an Action Log which was reviewed at each meeting to ensure that matters raised were
addressed. We have included the most recent copy at Annex B.

4. The Annual Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Report for 2016/17
On 22 June 2017, the Corporate Committee considered the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Internal
Audit and Counter Fraud Report for 2016/17. This was prepared and presented by the Interim Head of
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud.
The Annual Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Report summarises the work that the Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud service has undertaken during the year and the key themes that they have identified
across the Council. The Report contains an overall assessment of the Council’s control environment in
the form of the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Opinion. The Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud’s
opinion was:
Generally satisfactory with some improvements required
Governance, risk management and control in relation to business critical areas is generally
satisfactory. However, there are some areas of weakness and non-compliance in the framework of
governance, risk management and control which potentially put the achievement of objectives at risk.
Some improvements are required in those areas to enhance the adequacy and effectiveness of the
framework of governance, risk management and control.
The Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud stated that this conclusion was reached because:





Medium risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments are not significant in
aggregate to the system of internal control;
High risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments are isolated to specific systems
or processes; and
None of the individual assignment reports have an overall classification of no assurance.
Other sources of assurance, including those in respect of Children’s services provide evidence
of improvement and positive direction of travel.

The Corporate Committee agreed with the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion for 2016/17.

5. Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategic Approach and Charter - 2018/19
Internal Audit
The Corporate Committee considered the Internal Audit Strategy and Charter for 2018/19 at its meeting
on 23 January 2018. The Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service is delivered and developed,
including how its resources for the services, comprising an in house team and an external provider
(PwC) are applied to deliver the Work Plans and address the risks that the Council faces. It is

8

Page 49
underpinned by the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter which describes the purpose, authority,
responsibility and position of the service.
Counter Fraud
The Council’s strategic approach to countering fraud has four key attributes:
 promoting a counter-fraud fraud culture and engaging employees, members and contractors
in combating fraud and error;
 investigating and reporting on identified fraud, error and debt, seeking appropriate sanctions
and redress where fraud is proven;
 assessing fraud risk, identifying the area’s most vulnerable to fraud and assisting management
to develop effective counter fraud controls; and,
 sharing good practice and developing effective internal and external relationships to combat
fraud.
This is set out in the Counter Fraud Policy, which was approved by the Corporate Committee on 23
January 2018. This is also underpinned by the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter that was
approved on the same date.

6. Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans – 2018/19
The Corporate Committee considered the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plan for 2018/19 on
23 March 2018. The Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans represent key areas of interest for
the Corporate Committee and cover activities around governance, risk, controls and assurance
arrangements across the Council.
The Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud provided Progress Reports to every Corporate
Committee on progress against the Work Plan. The Corporate Committee assessed progress and
considered amendments made to the Work Plans that were required due to emerging risks and
changing requirements.
The Progress Reports also included the outcome of planned and reactive audit work undertaken on
specific aspects of activity around the Council’s governance, risk and control environment and the
outcome of completed fraud investigations. Where Internal Audit identified systems, services or areas
as demonstration No or Limited Assurance, the Corporate Committee challenged the reasons for this
and sought assurances that appropriate actions were being put in place to manage these risks and that
management could verify the actions taken with appropriate evidence.
The Corporate Committee considered the Council’s arrangements for meeting the Data Transparency
Code 2015 which requires local authorities to publish a wide range of data including that relating to
counter fraud costs and activity and how favourably this compared with the value of fraud identified,
prosecuted and recovered by the Council’s investigation functions.
In addition, the Corporate Committee has reviewed and approved a number of the Council’s counter
fraud policies and procedures, including those covering fraud, bribery, money laundering and whistle
blowing.

7. Counter Fraud activity

9

Page 50
The Corporate Committee recognised the good work being done in respect of tenancy investigations,
identifying Council housing properties and those managed locally by housing associations for recovery
which had been subject to unlawful subletting.
The Corporate Committee also welcomed the work being done to recover money and assets obtained
through fraud against the Council through various means, including the Proceeds of Crime Act, where
a number of notable successes had been reported to the Corporate Committee. The Corporate
Committee were keen to ensure that where such recoveries are achieved that the ring-fenced funds be
reinvested into further investigative and recovery action.
The Corporate Committee continues to track the performance of the Department for Work and Pensions
Single Fraud Investigation Service in investigating and prosecution housing benefit fraud committed
against the borough since the function transferred to DWP in February 2015.
The Corporate Committee also received reports on the Counter Fraud Team’s success in working in
partnership with other local authorities using funding provided by DCLG to tackle fraud in No Recourse
to Public Funds (NRPF) and Rogue Landlords (private sector lettings). The Corporate Committee were
particularly pleased that the success of the NRPF project had led to the multi-disciplinary model being
adopted on a permanent basis with a member of the Counter Fraud team embedded in the NRPF team.
The Corporate Committee continued to support commitment to conducting recovery action through the
Proceeds of Crime Act and civil recovery routes, to seek prosecutions and Unlawful Profit Orders under
the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 2013, and in the joint working being carried out with
Community Safety, the Police and other agencies in tackling gang crime within the borough.

8. Relationship with the external auditors
Representatives from our external auditor (KPMG) have been regular attendees at our meetings during
2017/18. This includes presenting their plans for the audit of the Council’s Statement of Accounts and
Pension Fund accounts and reporting the outcome of their work for that year’s accounts.
The Corporate Committee recommended to full Council in September 2016 that the Council should opt
in to the procurement arrangements being established by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) to
enable the Council to appoint its own external auditor by 31 March 2018 for the 2018/19 accounts.
Mazars have been appointed.

9. The Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement
The Corporate Committee considered the Statement of Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund
and the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 at its meeting on 28 September 2017.
KPMG reported at the Corporate Committee on 28 September 2017 that they planned to issue an
unqualified audit opinion on the Council’s financial statements and Pension Fund financial statements.
They concluded that the Council had not made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources particularly in relation to Children’s Services but did note that
progress had been made in this regard and within the internal control environment.
The Statement of Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund, and Annual Governance Statement were
approved on 28 September 2017.

10. Risk Management
10

Page 51
On 28 September 2017, the Corporate Committee reviewed and approved the Council’s Risk
Management Strategy and Policy 2017- 2020. The Corporate and Strategic Risk report was also
considered on 28 September 2017 and 21 March 2018.
The Corporate Committee has sought assurances that proper risk management arrangements and
procedures were in place in adults and children’s social care, in particular the way in risks were being
managed in Children’s Services following the adverse Ofsted inspection. In addition, it has received the
statutory annual reports on complaints from these areas.

11. Treasury Management
Following the establishment of the Pension Board and Pension Committee on 1 April 2015 the
Committee retained oversight for treasury management activity in respect of the Council’s investments
and borrowing. On 28 September 2017, the Corporate Committee received a report on Treasury
Management performance.

12. Governance requirements
CIPFA published a statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government in
December 2010 which contained a set of governance requirements. They recommend that each
authority should assess itself against to satisfy itself that it has effective governance arrangements in
place. Authorities are encouraged to see the Statement as representing best practice and use it to
assess their arrangements to drive up audit quality and governance arrangements.
The Corporate Committee are pleased to note that the Internal Audit Service continued to be conforming
in all areas with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) having previously made some minor
improvements to arrangements which were recommended as a result of and external peer review
undertaken in 2015.
The Corporate Committee approved changes in the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter in
January 2018 to ensure that it continues to fully comply with the PSIAS requirements.
In 2016, the Corporate Committee received a report on CIPFA’s new Code of Corporate Governance
which came into effect in April 2016 and which would impact on the Annual Governance Statement for
2016/17 as well as changes required to the Local Code of Corporate Governance from 2016/17 which
the Corporate Committee approved in April 2016. The Corporate Committee received a further report
in September 2016 which assessed the areas in which the Council could demonstrate it met the
requirements of the new code and areas where further action was needed demonstrate full compliance
by the end of the year.
The Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 was audited by the external auditors and the Statement
of Accounts (which includes the Annual Governance Statement) was approved on 28 September 2017.
The process of preparing the 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement as been audited by the Council’s
internal audit function and received a substantial assurance rating.

13. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)

11

Page 52
RIPA aims to ensure that public bodies respect the privacy of members of the public when carrying out
their investigations and that there is an interference with privacy only where the law permits it and there
is a clear public interest justification. The Council’s use of its powers under RIPA and the
Communications Order are subject to external scrutiny in the form of annual inspections by the Office
of Surveillance Commissioner’s Office (OSC) and the Interception of Communications Commissioner’s
Office (IOCCO) respectively. All applications for covert surveillance are subject to judicial approval, in
a magistrate’s court, to ensure the use of this technique is limited to only the most serious criminal
investigations which would result in a custodial sentence of at least six months.

14. Public Engagement
The Corporate Committee has considered issues over the last year that have generated a lot of public
interest. Members are always keen to hear views of the public and that has increased public
participation at meetings. Members of the public have contributed to discussions around special audits
and investigations, reports on complaints and general housing issues.

15. Complaints, Members Enquiries and Information Governance
The Corporate Committee received the Corporate Complaints Digest on 28 September 2017 and 21
March 2018. These focussed on the arrangements for, and performance of, handling of complaints,
information requests and Members’ Enquiries. The Corporate Committee also considered reports on
the handling of statutory complaints in Children’s and Adult Social Care on 29 November 2017.
There was one published Ombudsman Report regarding a Housing Application that was reported to
the Corporate Committee on 28 September 2017.
16. Conclusion
The Corporate Committee believes that it has successfully fulfilled its role and responsibilities, as set
out in the Corporate Committee’s terms of reference, during 2017/18. Members demonstrated real
commitment, engagement and robust challenge in the issues before them. The Corporate Committee
would like to express its appreciation to the Council staff, external stakeholders and our external
auditors who have contributed to our work and supported us throughout the year.

12

Page 53
Annex A: Summary of reports considered by Corporate Committee during 2017/18
Date of Meeting

22/06/2017

28/09/2017

29/11/2017

23/01/18

Report Considered
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Fire Safety Briefing Note
 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report
 Audit Committee Effectiveness
 Draft Annual Governance Statement
 Going Concern Assessment
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Published Ombudsman Report – Housing Applications
 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
 Statement of Accounts 2016/17
 Public Inspection 2016/17
 Complaints, Members Enquiries and Freedom of Information Requests
2016/17
 Risk Management Strategy and Policy 2017 – 2020
 Corporate and Strategic Risk Report
 Pay Policy Update
 Audit and Investigations Update
 Treasury Management Performance Report
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Rush Common Consent Applications – 237 Brixton Hill
 Rush Common Consent Applications – 35 Helix Gardens
 Rush Common Consent Applications – Saltoun Road
 Children’s Social Care – Annual Complaints
 Children’s Social Care – Risk Management
 Adults Social Care – Annual Complaints
 Adults Social Care – Risk Management
 Adults Social Care - Members’ Enquiries
 Housing Fire Safety Update
 Audit and Investigations Update
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Calculation of Council Tax Base and National Non-Domestic Rates Return
1 2018/19
 Housing Management Update
 Pay Policy Statement
 Disciplinary Cases 1 January – 30 November 2017
 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy and Charter for 2018/19; and
Annual Review of Counter 2017/18 and Review of Counter Fraud Policies
 Audit and Investigations Update

13

Page 54
Date of Meeting

21/03/18

Report Considered
 Work Programme and Action Monitoring
 Audit and Investigations Update
 2016/17 Annual Audit Letter and 2017/18 Statement of Accounts – the
Annual Audit Plan and Preparatory Activity
 Corporate Risk Register Q4 2017/18
 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plans 2018/19
 Corporate Committee Annual Report
 Progress Update on MyLambeth portal
 Corporate Complaints – six-monthly update
 Fire Risk Assessment Update
 Procurement Update
 General Data Protection Regulations/Information Governance

14

Annex B – Corporate Committee Action Log - Corporate Committee Action Monitoring
Overdue
No.
1

Due Date
29.11.17

Meeting
Date
01.12.16

Agenda
Item
7

29.11.17

22.06.17

4

3

29.11.17

22.06.17

5

4

End of
Year

30.03.17

7

5

23.01.18

28.09.17

4

6

23.01.18
In progress

28.09.17

6

7

23.01.18

29.11.17

10

Action

Adult Social Care – Analysis of Members’ Enquiries – looking at feasibility
Member’s Enquiries of one portal for complaints.
To send ward councillors all information relating to fire
Fire Safety Briefing
safety tests and other DCLG-bound information from
Note
the 67 housing associations in the borough.
Internal Audit and The Strategic Director for Children’s Services would
Counter
Fraud provide a briefing on the checking of quality control
Annual Report
flagged at senior level for foster carers.
Internal Audit and The Council was updating fraud awareness training
Counter Fraud Plans and it would be re-launched and made available to
2017/18
Members in addition to staff.
Published
Ombudsman Report Officers would provide feedback to Corporate
–
Housing Committee on the operational review.
Application
The auditors would provide a summary statement
Statement
of
detailing queries and outcomes, once they had been
Accounts 2016/17
determined and the investigation had concluded.
Adults’ Social Care – The table in the agenda pack (pages 107-8) would be
Risk Management
resent due to a printing error.

15

Comments
To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be reported to
the Committee in
due course
To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting

Owner
SD for Corporate
Resources
Del Dir for
Housing
Management
SD for Children’s
Services
Head of IACF

Ass Dir for
Housing Need
Ass Dir
Corporate
Resources
Assistant
Director for
Housing Director
for Adult Social
Care

Page 55

2

Description

Awaiting
No.
1

Due Date
21.03.18

Meeting
Date
30.03.17

Agenda
Item
5

Description

Action

Report back on the implementation of IR35 tax
Corporate
Risk
reforms and the redesigned community safety service
Register Q4 2016/17
model from Internal Audit Plan.
Update
on
performance
and Officers to attend a challenge session on the
priorities since the Committee’s concerns with major construction work
re-integration
of quotes.
Lambeth Living

Comments

Owner

To be included in
future reports

Head of IACF

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Assistant
Director for
Housing Capital
and Asset
Management
Interim HR
Director

21.03.18

23.01.18

5

3

21.03.18

23.01.18

6

Pay
Statement

Policy Officers would obtain data on the minimum point of
salary scale.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

4

Postelection
2018

7

Internal Audit and Head of Performance to contact Democratic Services
Counter Fraud Plans to include Members’ Enquiry training in the Members’
2017/18
Development Programme.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

7

Children’s
Care
–
Complaints

5

June 2018

30.03.17

29.11.17

6

June 2018

23.01.18

7

7

Ongoing

30.03.17

4

8

Ongoing

28.09.17

7

Feedback on the CSC auditing programme and the
Social
monitoring of lessons learnt in a six-monthly report to
Annual
the Committee and to the Children’s Services
Scrutiny sub-Committee
Disciplinary Cases 1
To report back to the Committee on the disciplinary
January
–
30
case.
November 2017
Officers could bring a summary of Risk and Practice
Risk Management in
Forum themes for future reporting and noted that it
Adult Social Care
fed into the safeguarding report.
A quarterly update on the Public Inspection to be sent
Public
Inspection
to the Committee on the progress of any objections
2016/17
raised to the external auditor.

16

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course
To be reported to
the Committee in
due course
To be reported to
the Committee in
due course
To be provided
outside the
meeting

Head of
Performance/
Democratic
Services
Assistant
Director for
Quality and
Assurance
Interim HR
Director
Director of Adult
Social Care
Assistant
Director for
Corporate
Finance

Page 56

2

No.

9

10

11

Due Date

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Meeting
Date

28.09.17

29.11.17

23.01.18

Agenda
Item

Description

Action

Owner

7

Officers would review and benchmark against other
local authority practices in terms of what information
Public
Inspection was published in the public domain comparative to
2016/17
other councils and report back on outcomes and
qualified endorsements, in addition to improvements
to be made.

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course

Ass Dir
Corporate
Resources

8

Children’s
Social Officers would consider whether they had any
Care
–
Risk recommendations to improve these working
Management
arrangements for the Committee.

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Assistant
Director for
Quality and
Assurance

7

The new Workforce management sub-group was
Disciplinary Cases 1 collating information for management to review, and
January
–
30 officers would bring a half-yearly report to the
November 2017
Committee which would include disciplinary numbers
and trends.

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course

Interim HR
Director

17

Page 57

Comments

Implemented/Finished
No.

1

2

3

Dec 2017

21.03.18

21.03.18

21.03.18

Meeting
Date
30.03.17

Agenda
Item
9

30.03.17

6

22.06.17

Fire
Safety

22.06.17

5

5

21.03.18

28.09.17

8

6

21.03.18

29.11.17

13

7

21.03.18

29.11.17

12

Description

Action

Comments

Owner

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course

SD for Corporate
Resources

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course

Head of IACF

Members agreed to talk about emergency procedures
in detail at a future meeting.

To go on work
programme

Director,
Environment
(Raj)

The IACF report in January would contain further
information on H&S/FRAs.

To be included in
future reports

Head of IACF

Progress was being made on the MyLambeth portal,
and officers would report back to Committee in six
months over its implementation.

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course

Head of
Performance

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Counter Fraud
Manager

To be reported to
the Committee in
due course

Assistant
Director for
Housing

The Strategic Director for Corporate Resources
Work
Programme
would report back on the organisational redesign
and
Action
developments, which aimed to reduce duplications,
Monitoring
after initial assessments.
Officers would report back to provide assurance on
Audit
and
the General Data Protection Regulation readiness
Investigations
assessment after further audit work had been
Update
completed.
Fire Safety
Internal Audit and
Counter
Fraud
Annual Report
Complaints,
Members’ Enquiries,
and Freedom of
Information
Act
Requests 2016/17
Audit
and
Investigations
Update

Officers to consider alternative ways to present the
benefits and money received from counter fraud
work.
There were 2,747 FRAs, with a corresponding
schedule of actions, and officers would use the
Housing Fire Safety
system to identify and set these actions out in terms
Update
of the percentage completed and timescales to send
to Members.

18

Page 58

4

Due Date

No.
8

Due Date
21.03.18

Meeting
Date
29.11.17

Agenda
Item

Description

Action

9

Adults’ Social Care – Officers would discuss outside the meeting the
Annual Complaints
auditor list for next year’s report.
Children’s
Care
–
Complaints

9

21.03.18

29.11.17

7

10

June 2018

23.01.18

5

Officers to report back on the new IT system for
Social
complaints and capturing data, and ensure that
Annual
officers captured data correctly and used system
properly.
Update
on
performance
and Report back on the process of billing leaseholders,
priorities since the the way in which estimates differed from final bills and
re-integration
of how the Council would improve processes.
Lambeth Living

Comments

Owner

To be provided
outside the
meeting

Director for Adult
Social Care/
Head of IACF
Strategic
Director for
Children’s
Services

To be provided
outside the
meeting
To be provided
outside the
meeting

Director of
Housing
Services

Page 59

19

Page 60

20

Page 61

Agenda Item 9.c

Council 18 July 2018
Report title: Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017-18
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for the Voluntary Sector, Partnerships and Community Safety (Job Share):
Councillor Jim Dickson / Councillor Mohammed Seedat
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director, Corporate Resources: Jackie Belton
Contact for enquiries: Gary O’Key, Lead Scrutiny Officer, Corporate Resources; 020 7926 2183,
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
Scrutiny is required to report annually to Full Council. The attached report sets out the activities of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee and scrutiny commissions
during 2017–18.

Finance summary
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Recommendations
1.
That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017-18 be approved.

Page 62
1.
1.1

Context
The attached report provides an account of the activities of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee,
Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee and scrutiny commissions in the 2017-18 municipal
year.

2.
2.1

Proposal and Reasons
Scrutiny is a key democratic mechanism for holding public service decision-makers and providers in
Lambeth to account and facilitating the improvement of public services in the area. Working with
citizens and professionals, scrutiny councillors undertake the following roles:
a. monitor, question and investigate the performance of the Council’s Cabinet, individual
decision-makers and council services;
b. develop, review and make recommendations for the improvement of services and activities
commissioned by the council;
c. hold the Cabinet and officers making decisions on behalf of the council to account in public;
and,
d. scrutinise other public service providers’ work and its impact on the local community.

2.2

Effective scrutiny enhances accountability, ensures transparency of decision-making, contributes to
service improvement and acts as a ‘check and balance’ on decision-makers.

2.3

Scrutiny is required to report annually to Full Council on its activities. The attached report sets out
the activities in the municipal year 2017-18.

3.
3.1

Finance
There are no specific capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report.

4.
4.1

Legal and Democracy
The role and functions of Overview and Scrutiny are set out in Part 3, Section 6 of the Council’s
Constitution, which includes the requirement that Overview & Scrutiny Committee (and its SubCommittee(s) and commissions) must report annually to full Council on their workings and make
recommendations for future work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate.

4.2

There are no further comments from Democratic Services.

5.
5.1

Consultation and co-production
As set out in the annual report.

6.

Risk management
None.

7.

Equalities impact assessment
None.

8.

Community safety
None.

9.

Organisational implications
None

10.

Timetable for implementation
Not applicable.

Page 63
Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Ed Davie
Alison McKane, Head of
Legal Services
Wayne Chandai,
Democratic Services &
Scrutiny Manager
Nisar Visram
Assistant Director,
Corporate Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Henry Langford,
Democratic Services

Lambeth directorate /
department or partner
Chair, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (2017/18)
On behalf of Strategic Director,
Corporate Resources

Date Sent

Date
Received

21.06.18

21.06.18

Comments in
paragraph:

Corporate Resources

Corporate Resources
Corporate Resources
Corporate Resources

Report History
Original
discussion
Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part
II
Exempt
Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report

with N/A

from No

No

Date first appeared on forward N/A
plan
Key decision reasons
N/A
Background information

Agenda and minutes of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=113

Appendices

Appendix 1: Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 65

London Borough of Lambeth

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Annual Report 2017-18

Page 66

Chair’s Foreword
Making Lambeth a fairer place with better public services has driven the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee’s (OSC) work this year.
Our Jobs for All and Accessibility of Council Digital Services Commissions are already
helping more of our residents, particularly the most vulnerable, get the training, employment
and access to services they need.
These commissions built on the work OSC has done to scrutinise and enhance the council’s
Equality Commission and to support Black Thrive, established to deliver scrutiny’s Lambeth
Black Health and Wellbeing Commission (LBHWC) recommendations.
The implementation of the LBHWC has been part of a wider effort to improve the borough’s
mental health services that has seen a 60% reduction in emergency hospital admissions. In
December the OSC scrutinised the Lambeth Living Well Network Alliance, which will take
integration of health and care in the borough and, we hope, these improvements, even
further.
Cllrs Dyer and Hill have also diligently represented Lambeth on the Joint Overview and
Scrutiny Committee for South East London which, with five other boroughs, has made many
important changes to the NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plan and South London
and Maudsley NHS Trust’s changes to provision for older people.
The OSC chairs met Lord Kerslake following his resignation as chair of King’s College
Hospital NHS Trust over an impossible funding position and we agree with him that central
government needs to take action make this key, world-class institution financially
sustainable.
OSC have also called on central government to act on other services beyond the council’s
control, namely Thames Water and, in the previous municipal year, Southern Rail.
Following burst water mains in Herne Hill and Leigham Vale the OSC began a commission
on Thames Water’s failings, collaborating with several other boroughs and the Greater
London Authority. Unfortunately our recommendations were not acted on in time to prevent
the widespread water outages that followed the severe weather in March. We subsequently
called senior representatives of Thames Water in to our last OSC meeting where residents
and councillors questioned them robustly about the bursts and their inadequate response.
We have made a number of recommendations and been in contact with regulator Ofwat
pointing out that Thames Water’s 15% target for reducing leaks by 2025 would still leave it
the worst water company in the country for this crucial measure. We are pleased to see that
Ofwat’s review into these incidents recognises that there were multiple failings on the part of
Thames Water and calls on them to make improvements.
Similarly when Southern Rail services were at their worst, in the midst of strikes and other
delays, the OSC called in senior representatives to give frustrated Lambeth travellers and
councillors the chance to have their say. We wrote to the Secretary of State for Transport
recommending franchises serving London be passed to Transport for London as they
lapsed. Although this looks a remote prospect OSC and residents attending that transport
meeting made many recommendations to the borough’s transport strategy that will be acted
on.

Page 67

The transport strategy was just one area of the council’s responsibilities where OSC held the
executive to account and made a significant contribution. We started the municipal year
examining council strategy, finances and how the council had responded to the Grenfell
Tower disaster with additional fire safety checks and related work. OSC returned to all these
subjects to check on progress and make recommendations on the budget proposals. A key
pressure facing council finances is uncertainty over the already halved central government
grant and the increase in demand for adult and children’s social care and Special
Educational Needs (SEN) provision.
SEN was one of many subjects investigated by the new Children’s Services Scrutiny SubCommittee (CSSC). The CSSC focused on supporting the continuing improvement of
children’s social care following the Ofsted ‘Inadequate’ judgement of 2015. It also looked at
the Youth Offending Service (YOS) which had also received two poor inspection reports in
recent years. New, permanent officer leadership seems to have helped make very significant
improvement and we will continue to support these key services. We welcome the news that
Lambeth will be creating a public health strategy to tackle rising serious youth violence which
was a key recommendation of the OSC community safety meeting last year.
Lambeth’s schools excel with 97% judged ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ and GCSE results in the
country’s top 10%. However it is clear that many of our black Caribbean pupils continue to
face particular challenges, disproportionately excluded from our schools and not succeeding
as well academically. We welcomed the council’s report on Raising Achievement of Black
Caribbean Pupils and were impressed when we visited both the primary and secondary pupil
referral units in the borough. We would like to see the report’s recommendations
implemented in full and a significant reduction in the number of children excluded.
Those objectives start with excellent early years provision and we are pleased that Lambeth
has retained all 23 children’s centres and that school readiness at age five levels has
improved to meet the national average.
This is the last annual report of this, the first municipal term of the new scrutiny system that
saw six committees rolled into one OSC, with the later addition of the CSSC. It has been
extremely challenging covering the broad remit, just some of which is touched on above, but
one advantage it has is that you can see patterns across service areas. The most striking
pattern for me is that our Black Caribbean residents in particular continue to suffer the worst
outcomes in education, health, criminal justice and employment. In this, the 70th anniversary
of the arrival of the first Windrush generation who helped rebuild this country after the
Second World War, we in Lambeth of all places must redouble our efforts to ensure that
they, their children and grandchildren get a fair deal and are able to truly thrive.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank all residents, co-optees, partner organisations,
councillors and council officers who have made a contribution to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC) this year. Special thanks to scrutiny officers Elaine Carter and Gary O’Key
and Vice Chairs Jacqui Dyer, Matt Parr and Andy Wilson.

Cllr Ed Davie
Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 68

Context
This report provides an account of the activities of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
and its commissions, as well as the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee, during the
2017-18 municipal year. For reporting purposes, this covers the period from June 2017 to April
2018.
This being the last year of the electoral cycle, the report also summarises the work of Lambeth’s
Scrutiny function across the four-year municipal term 2014-18.

1. Introduction: the scrutiny process and structure in Lambeth
Overview and Scrutiny is a key part of the democratic process of the council. The purpose of
scrutiny and the activities undertaken by scrutiny councillors is to enable members who are not
part of the Executive (Cabinet) to engage with and influence the policy development and
decision-making of the council. They do this by reviewing or scrutinising decisions made by the
council (and by some key partners), by contributing to the development of strategies and policies,
and by making reports and recommendations on matters which are the responsibility of the
authority or which affect the local area.
The Lambeth model of scrutiny comprises an overarching Overview and Scrutiny Committee
which is responsible for scrutinising the whole range of the council’s functions as well as
exercising statutory responsibilities for health scrutiny (including the establishment of any joint
health scrutiny arrangements that may be set up with other boroughs) and for crime and disorder
scrutiny. In addition, at its AGM on 19 April 2017, Council approved the establishment of a
Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee covering the provision, planning and management
of all children and young people’s services. This built on the work of the Improving Children’s
Services Scrutiny Commission, which was set up in July 2015 to provide governance oversight
and challenge with respect to the Council’s improvement journey following the Ofsted inspection
report of May 2015 which judged Lambeth’s Children’s Services to be ‘inadequate’. When
matters are identified which require more in depth scrutiny, OSC may establish short term task
and finish groups (‘scrutiny commissions’). Terms of reference and operational arrangements for
Overview and Scrutiny and the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee are set out in the
council’s constitution (Part 3, Section 6).
Accordingly scrutiny provides backbench members with the opportunity to question cabinet
members, senior officers and other statutory partners on their proposals and hold them to
account for their decisions and for the delivery of anticipated outcomes. Through commissions,
scrutiny councillors in Lambeth undertake in-depth investigations on specific issues, including the
work of other public service providers and its impact on the local community, and can make
recommendations to support the ambitions of the authority. Scrutiny also seeks to involve the
public and provide a voice for local people on the local issues that affect them or may be of
concern.
Through these arrangements scrutiny is used to hold public-service providers in Lambeth to
account and help improve the public services in the area. Effective scrutiny improves
accountability, ensures transparency of decision-making, contributes to service improvement and
acts as a 'check and balance' on decision-makers.

Page 69

2. Work Planning
OSC has a chair and three vice-chairs. Each vice-chair leads on a particular theme, reflecting the
strategic directorates, with the chair covering corporate strategy and being co-lead on health plus
any other areas not included within the vice-chair remit. The holders of these posts for the
2017/18 municipal year were:

Cllr Ed Davie
Chair

Cllr Jacqui Dyer
Vice Chair
Lead: People

Cllr Matt Parr
Vice Chair
Lead: Place

Cllr Andy Wilson
Vice Chair
Lead: Resources

The chair and vice chairs continued with their schedule of fortnightly meetings in order to provide
a steer on operational issues and work planning, as well as discussing more strategic matters
concerning the scrutiny function. In 2017/18 the quarterly briefing sessions established the
previous year between each vice chair and their corresponding strategic director were continued,
having been successful in providing opportunities to better engage around horizon scanning and
issues for future scrutiny, as well as following up on relevant issues. This was done in light of the
following principles underpinning the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the commissions it
sponsors and the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee:
-

Be independent from the administration and stakeholders;
Be accessible and inclusive of everyone in the borough;
Enable decisions to be challenged constructively;
Strive for better services that produce the best outcomes;
Base its decisions and recommendations on the best evidence available;
Follow up its recommendations.

The changing OSC membership and the themed approach continued to present some
challenges on how best to secure the engagement of different members on a meeting-bymeeting basis and ensure that all had an opportunity to determine and ‘own’ the scrutiny agenda.
However, this being the fourth year of such arrangements, continuity of membership across
particular themes from the previous municipal year(s) was ensured where possible and
accordingly members were able to follow up on their recommendations from 2016/17, or from
commission action plans, and track progress. Pre-meetings also continued to be held prior to
each scheduled OSC at a stage that could seek the input of all councillors appointed for that
theme.

Page 70

3. Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Membership
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee comprises nine councillors plus two education co-opted
members (who may vote only on education issues).
 Standing Members: Cllr Ed Davie (Chair), Cllr Jacqui Dyer (Vice Chair) Cllr Matt Parr (Vice
Chair); Cllr Andy Wilson (Vice Chair), Cllr Tim Briggs.
 Additional Members: Four majority group members drawn from the pool of non-executive
members are appointed for each scheduled OSC according to the meeting theme.
 Education co-opted members: Lynette Murphy O’Dwyer and Penny Smith-Orr.
The committee held five scheduled meetings in the 2017/18 reporting period – one fewer than
previous years due to the May 2018 elections. At the start of the year outline meeting themes
were established enabling the committee to focus the bulk of each meeting on a particular area
or set of cohesive priorities. The outline meeting themes comprised: Council Strategy; Equalities;
Transport and Health; and Budget and Finance, while the final meeting of the term, in March
2018, was used as an opportunity to take scheduled updates on outstanding items in the
committee’s work programme alongside an urgent item on Thames Water’s response to water
outages in the borough following the extreme weather earlier that month.
Key issues that the committee considered during the year are set out below. Full details of
reports and minutes of the meetings can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=113



Meeting theme: Council Strategy (July 2017)

The first Overview & Scrutiny Committee of the reporting period provided an opportunity to check
on progress against key council strategies, including the budget and the Organisational Redesign
programme.
Concerns were raised with the Deputy Leader (Investment & Partnerships) about the uncertainty
surrounding the future funding regime for local government, which had been thrown into doubt
following the snap general election result, and the budgetary position of the Council, including the
rate at which reserves and balances had reduced in recent years and how debt was being
managed. The committee identified housing section 20 receipts and Special Educational Needs
(SEN) as key budget issues which would need ongoing scrutiny; in particular, with demand for
SEN placements and transport rising, further work was needed to look at ways of making
additional savings in this area.
Members questioned the Strategic Director for Corporate Resources on the Organisational
Redesign programme, which aimed to deliver significant savings by transforming the council into
a smaller, more customer-focused organisation and embrace and optimise new technology.
While the general direction of travel was supported and mitigating actions set out to meet
identified risks were endorsed, there was some caution regarding the ambitious savings targets

Page 71

and potential for slippage. It was therefore resolved that a further update be taken at a future
meeting to track progress.
The committee also put questions to the Cabinet Member for Housing & Environment and lead
officers on housing fire safety in Lambeth in light of the Grenfell Tower tragedy. The importance
of ongoing engagement with affected residents was highlighted along with the need for openness
and transparency with regards to the status of Fire Risk Assessments (FRAs).



Meeting theme: Equalities (October 2017)

The October meeting was dedicated to equalities issues, with Members looking at how the
recommendations of the Lambeth Equality Commission set up by the Leader of the Council in
late 2016 were to be taken forward, and receiving provisional findings from two scrutiny
commissions which tied in closely with this – Jobs For All and Accessibility of Council Digital
Services.
Members heard from the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, as well as
lead officers, on the work of the Equality Commission, which made recommendations across four
themes aimed at improving the life chances of those residents who are currently worst off and
who are least able to take advantage of the opportunities offered by growth in the borough.
These themes were: education and learning; income and employment; participation,
representation and leadership; and crime and justice. The commission also identified four target
communities: Somali; Portuguese; Black Caribbean; and disabled people. The committee
stressed the importance of robust data and SMART targets (specific, measurable, achievable,
relevant and time-based) in assessing the impact of the recommendations and ensuring the
target communities were appropriately represented when it came to the governance processes
for driving and overseeing their implementation. Members also recommended a renewed focus
on early years peer parenting (as cited in the 2014 Black Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny
Commission report) and widening the training on unconscious bias, as well as seeking
assurances that every effort be made to maintain culturally specific services in the borough
despite funding cuts.
OSC approved the interim reports of the Jobs For All and Accessibility of Council Digital Services
commissions – further details of which can be found in section 6 below – for submission to
Cabinet in 2018.



Meeting theme: Health / Transport (December 2017)

At its December meeting, OSC considered two headline issues: the Lambeth Living Well
Network Alliance (LWNA) – a major system-wide transformation in the integration of health and
care in the borough – and the Lambeth Long Term Transport Strategy. The committee also took
the final programmed update on the action plan arising from the Equality Streets Scrutiny
Commission, which tied in closely with the Transport Strategy.

Page 72

Senior officers from the Council and the NHS Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
attended alongside the Cabinet Member for Healthier and Stronger Communities to explain the
rationale for the LWNA, which was intended to build upon the success of previous integrated
working between health and social care in relation to adult mental health services – such as the
Integrated Personal Support Allowance and Living Well Network – in delivering positive
outcomes for individuals. The Chief Executive of HealthWatch and the Director of Black Thrive
also attended to give their views on the proposals. The committee fully endorsed the principles
behind the LWNA while noting the risks attached to such a major service transformation, and
made a number of comments to try to assist decision makers in ensuring the Alliance was a
success, drawing on the committee’s experience of analysing early intervention approaches in
other service areas such as community safety and education. This again involved the key
themes of genuine and meaningful service user involvement, robust data collection and a solid
performance management framework with measurable targets.
On the Transport Strategy, Members heard from the Cabinet Member for Housing and
Environment on the early findings and timetable for implementation and made a number of
comments for consideration including proposing a regular car free day, supporting further
measures to assist smaller businesses in freight/delivery consolidation, and making sure
Members were properly consulted on plans and given adequate time to gather and feed in their
constituents’ views. The work of the Equality Streets Scrutiny Commission, which proposed
various measures to encourage modal shift towards more sustainable forms of transport, are
also to be assimilated within the Transport Strategy.



Meeting theme: Budget (February 2018)

At its February meeting, OSC considered the budget overview and financial implications for the
Council set out in the Cabinet report Revenue and Capital Budget 2018/19 – 2020/21, and the
savings proposals to meet the funding gap. The committee focused its scrutiny principally around
reserves, the SEN budget and how best to reduce costs and grow income streams, echoing the
themes highlighted in July, and made a number of observations and recommendations to
Cabinet as set out below. The committee intends to follow up on these issues in 2018/19 in
conjunction with the next July financial review.
RESOLVED:
1. That the committee notes the additional resources being put in to attempt to collect more
historical housing benefit overpayment debt, along with the fact that lobbying is taking
place via London Councils and the Local Government Association regarding the
possibility of transferring this debt back to the Department for Work and Pensions once
Universal Credit has been rolled out, but wishes to see efforts redoubled in this regard
2. That the committee is pleased to see the new SEN transport contract commence, albeit
after much delay, but requests future updates to reassure Members that expected
savings are being realised and service levels are being met
3. That more focus is needed on the pipeline of demand with regards to children with
special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) who will require Education, Health and
Care (EHC) plans when they start school, and that central government be lobbied
regarding the need for a funding system which better responds to the demand

Page 73

4. That the committee notes the plans in place to replenish the Council’s reserves but
wishes to see these further strengthened
5. That the committee commends the work being done around the social housing
investment fund but that a greater focus is needed on reducing costs and growing
income streams more widely. The committee notes that a Commercial Strategy is
expected in the coming financial year and wishes to further explore this matter at the
appropriate juncture
6. That the committee notes its concerns at recent developments involving Capita and,
while welcoming the reassurances given regarding monitoring and business continuity
planning, wishes to see more detail on how this risk is being managed
7. That the reporting of fees and charges in the budget report be enhanced in future to give
more detail regarding how levels are set, such as benchmarking and criteria used
8. That the Committee agrees with the King's Fund assessment that 'cuts to public health
are the falsest of false economies' and recommends that the Council does not make cuts
additional to the 26% cut already being made to public health by central government. Any
efficiencies made in public health should be reinvested directly in public health to prevent
illness and treat people with addiction and sexual health conditions. Prevent and treating
illness early saves lives and money.
This meeting also took an update on the work that had been done on fire safety since the July
meeting, with Members questioning the Cabinet Member on considerations around the
installation of sprinklers in housing blocks and the ongoing management of fire risk assessments
and resultant actions.


Meeting theme: Water Mains / Outstanding Work Programme Items (March 2018)

At its March meeting, OSC responded to the significant disruption and public concern caused by
widespread water main bursts in the south of the borough as a result of the extreme weather
earlier in the month by inviting Thames Water representatives in to discuss the events and issues
arising. This included their preparedness for such incidents and the customer response, and
followed on from previous joint scrutiny of trunk main bursts with other London Boroughs and the
Greater London Assembly (see also section 6). Members of the public, local councillors, the
relevant lead council officer and the Cabinet Members covering both Environment and
Emergency Planning attended the meeting to give their perspectives on the deficiencies in the
way the events were dealt with. Among the issues highlighted were poor communication
between Thames Water and the council (including around support for vulnerable residents),
inadequate provision of water stations for those left without water supplies (in some incidences
for more than four days), the need for better mapping information and analytics, and confusion
and concern over the compensation regime. Following the meeting the committee wrote to
Thames setting out a number of recommendations; Members also met with the water regulator,
Ofwat, as part of their national review into the freeze/thaw events, to further discuss the
difficulties encountered and what could be done to secure improvements, both in terms of
immediate learning and longer term infrastructure investment.
(NB The Ofwat review report ‘Out in the Cold’, published on 19 June 2018, endorses the views
espoused by OSC and calls on Thames Water to make improvements in its planning and service
provision).

Page 74

The committee also took updates on two outstanding issues in its work programme:
Organisational Redesign (following on from July) and Healthier High Streets (a scrutiny
commission seeking to improve the lifestyle choices available on the borough’s high streets
which reported to Cabinet in 2016 and made recommendations regarding off licences, betting
shops, fast food takeaways and payday loan shops). Among the recommendations to result from
this meeting was a suggestion from Lambeth’s Director of Public Health to install more water
fountains across the borough in order to provide a healthy (and free) alternative to sugary soft
drinks, and Thames Water have been contacted in conjunction with the above item regarding the
potential for supporting such a scheme.

4. Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Membership

Cllr Ed Davie
Chair


Cllr Liz Atkins

Cllr Max
Deckers Dowber

Cllr Jacqui Dyer

Cllr Louise
Nathanson

Plus Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer (statutory co-optee), Penny Smith-Orr (statutory co-optee).

The remit of the new Children’s Services Sub-committee (CSSC) covers the range of services
and provision for children and young people in Lambeth: children’s social care; safeguarding
children; children in care; education, learning and schools, early years, special education needs
and disability (SEND); youth and play services; and Youth Offending Services (YOS). The terms
of reference were well reflected in the work of the committee during 2017/18 and up to three
substantive reports were considered at each of the committee’s six meetings. The headline
issues scrutinised are set out below, reports and minutes can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=778





Children’s Social Care
Improvement Strategy 5 x;
Children and Young People Plan
2 x;
Raising Achievement in
Lambeth Schools
Early Years and School
Readiness








Performance Digest (Children’s
Social Care) 5 x;
Children at Risk
SEND
School Exclusions
Lambeth School Inspection
Outcomes
Youth Offending Service

Children’s Social Care
The overriding focus for the committee throughout the year was the safeguarding of the
borough’s most vulnerable children and young people, with Members providing challenge and
seeking assurance that the help, care and protection afforded by the council and partners
continues to improve. Accordingly the committee took an ongoing interest in the progress being

Page 75

made in delivering the children’s social care improvement plan, receiving an update report at
each meeting and putting questions to the Cabinet Member for Children and Schools and the
Strategic Director, Children’s Services.
The committee welcomed the fact that Children’s Services had put in place a comprehensive
performance digest that tracked a range of indicators including those identified as priorities in the
improvement plan and at each meeting drilled down into the evidence that demonstrated impact
on improving outcomes for children and young people. A positive output to driving up the quality
of social work practice was the increasing number of permanent staff at senior and team
manager level as well as more permanent social workers coming into post. However in tandem
with feedback from the monitoring visits by Ofsted, the committee remained concerned that there
had not been a more rapid improvement in certain parts of the service and the need for a more
consistent approach. The committee were also mindful that where significant performance
improvements had been made – in areas such as Children Looked After reviews, annual health
assessments, and return home interviews – it was important that improvements were
consolidated and areas of outstanding concern addressed. A headline issue for the committee
was the number of care leavers not in employment, education or training (NEET) and the need
for targeted work to ensure that Lambeth is ambitious for the children it looks after and that those
aspirations are reflected in improving outcomes for our care leavers and a reduction in the
number who are ‘NEET’.
The committee also sought assurance that all parts of the local system were working closely
together and agencies had confidence in each other. Through a recurrent focus of questioning
around referral and contacts, the operation of the ‘Front Door’ and access to early help services
the committee sought evidence of good communication and relationships across partnerships
and a collaborative approach.
The committee also focussed upon the need for a co-operative relationship which takes into
account the voice of children and young people and their feedback to improve services, as well
as greater community representation and involvement to identify appropriately targeted
responses and interventions. An underpinning issue for the committee in children’s social care
was the disproportionally high number of children and young people from an African Caribbean
background in the care system; but issues of over representation and disproportionality
resonated throughout the year across a number of scrutiny discussions and Members flagged
the need for more contextual thinking around disadvantage and discrimination and using
commissioning opportunities to address inequality.
At year end, the expected Ofsted inspection had taken place with the outcome due to be
announced in May 2018.
(NB The Ofsetd inspection report was published on 9 May 2018. Ofsted’s overall conclusion was
that children’s services in Lambeth require improvement to be good; however the adoption
performance sub-judgement was that this service remains inadequate).

Page 76

Education
Following up on the work of the previous year’s Education Commission, the committee
considered key education planning and performance information with a strong focus on the
robustness of data to inform evaluations and commissioning decisions and drive up performance.
School inspection outcomes again indicated that the quality of schools in Lambeth continued to
rise; the committee was also mindful of the good progress made by children in Lambeth once in
school. However the committee was concerned that data suggested Lambeth was below the
London average in relation to the early years foundation stage, and below our immediate
neighbours Southwark and Lewisham. And whilst early education is better than it has ever been,
and an improving percentage of Lambeth children are achieving a good level of development by
age 5 years, public health data indicated early years education is not benefiting the poorest
children in Lambeth as much as their peers. Accordingly the committee looked at school
readiness and proposals for narrowing the attainment gap by age five so that all Lambeth
children might do even better in achieving good school outcomes. As part of the scrutiny the
committee heard from the Director of Lambeth Early Action Partnership (LEAP) and requested
more information from the LEAP’s activities stressing the need to get the best learning and
outcomes from the project which represents a major investment in the borough.
The committee also looked at the outcomes for Lambeth’s vulnerable children and young people
in achieving their full potential when it considered progress on implementation of Special
Educational Needs and Disability [SEND] reform and developing a SEND strategy with local
partners. Figures indicated that the number of Lambeth adults with learning disabilities in paid
employment is exceedingly low and questions focussed on initiatives and pilots which supported
young people into employment and encouraging independence for SEND pupils at critical
stages. This included independent travel for teenagers and the training in place to support this, a
challenge emphasised by the growing demand for transport assistance and a high, unsustainable
overspend in the SEND transport budget.
The committee welcomed two research studies undertaken by Lambeth’s School Research and
Statistics Unit on the underachievement of black Caribbean pupils/good practice in raising
achievement and narrowing the attainment gap. Arising from previous scrutiny on this issue, the
committee considered that the work undertaken was crucial in feeding into the council’s work on
the Equality Commission, and supported the wider dissemination of the report particularly at
national level as Members considered that a strong economic case could be made to
Government relating to the findings within the report on the issues and interventions that would
help raise the achievement of black Caribbean children.
As preparation for a scrutiny on school exclusions, members visited the two pupil referral units
(PRUs) in Lambeth and met with the Parallel Learning Trust. The committee recorded their
appreciation of the work being undertaken at the PRUs and the progress and outcomes achieved
by pupils leaving the Park Campus. To inform its formal session the committee had requested a
league table of exclusions by school covering permanent and fixed term exclusions and
managed moves, and demographic information (age/gender/SEN) at primary and secondary
level. It was noted that no children looked after had been excluded during the school year
2016/17, and one pupil with SEND but, as with exclusion data across England, Lambeth shows
disproportional exclusion levels for black Caribbean pupils and those who have a dual heritage of
white/black Caribbean. The committee raised the need to work more effectively with families from
diverse backgrounds, the importance of parenting programmes and a need for early intervention
strategies that support at-risk children and young people. The committee also recommended that

Page 77

consideration be given to developing a procedure or protocol covering low level concerns in
accordance with a school’s safeguarding policy so that schools can identify concerning behaviour
early and patterns can be dealt with before they have a chance to escalate. The learning from
the exclusions scrutiny fed into the subsequent scrutiny on the Youth Offending Service (YOS),
exploring system working with education in Lambeth and the extent to which there is
understanding and learning from children and young people coming into the YOS as to how
Lambeth might ensure that children and young people maintain their education and achieve
maximum attainment. The committee welcomed hearing from the Chair of the Youth Justice
Management Board that this issue was shortly to be explored further by the Board.
Youth Offending Service (YOS)
The focus on the Youth Offending Service arose from an Inspection by Her Majesty’s Inspection
of Probation (HMIP) in 2015 which had raised concerns about the Lambeth YOS. Improvement
progress reports had been considered previously by OSC and that responsibility had now been
assumed by CSSC. In receiving the previous update in May 2017 OSC had been frustrated by
the progress being made; however from the information presented to CSSC at its final meeting in
March 2018 it seemed that much more positive progress had been made over the last year in
addressing improvements which was welcomed by the committee.
The committee welcomed the Building Brighter Futures strategy which set out the way the
council and partners work with young people who are offending or at risk of offending, with a
strong emphasis on prevention and diversion activities before they might enter the youth justice
system. Members also welcomed the focus on community engagement with events being held to
find better ways of working with the community and increase learning to inform strategy
development. Noting the increase in serious youth violence and more young people presenting
with offences likely to attract stiffer penalties, the committee also endorsed the public health
approach to youth violence which was outlined in a strategy put before Cabinet in March 2018.

5. Scrutiny Commissions
In addition to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Children’s Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee, scrutiny commissions provide an opportunity for more detailed investigations of
specific issues by a group of councillors. Commission reports and recommendations are
approved by OSC on completion and then submitted to Cabinet (or relevant body) for
consideration and action planning.
Below is an overview of commissions which formally reported during the year and those which
are currently in progress. Due to this being the final year of the municipal term little new
commission activity was undertaken in order to prevent work being left unfinished, though two
commissions which had been ongoing for more than a year were concluded.

Jobs For All Commission
Membership: Cllr Matt Parr (chair), Cllr Fred Cowell and Cllr Mary Atkins
Unemployment in Lambeth is now relatively low. But there are still a significant number of
residents who are unemployed and in many cases have been for a long time. The Jobs For All
Commission focused its inquiry on how the council can help improve prospects for people
furthest from the jobs market. The commission concluded its work early in 2018 and is scheduled

Page 78

to present its findings and recommendations to at the first Cabinet meeting of the new
administration.
The council has already done much to help the unemployed in the borough but people with
multiple barriers to working often need additional help into employment. The commission has
sought to assess council policy relating to helping people into work and to identify opportunities
that might expand or augment the range of support available. In particular it explored the role of a
range of individualised employment support interventions. One example of this is Supported
Employment, a model based on an individualised place and train intervention proven to have
positive outcomes for this client group.
The Council is variously an employer; a provider of services; a contractor; a purchaser with
access to supply chains; and a planning authority. The commission considered how the council is
using, or might use, its procurement activities and capacity to realise benefits from contracts (and
supply chains) and support delivery on objectives around employment, and the inter-linked
discussions on social value.
The commission held a number of evidence sessions and met with a range of charity and social
enterprise organisations which deliver supported employment and provide training and
employment opportunities for disadvantaged people in Lambeth. It also heard from people who
have experienced supported employment. From the discussions the commission gained some
insight into the importance of individuals being able to gradually increase their hours of work as
they become adjusted to work, and the difficulties sometimes presented by the benefits system.
The commission also met with providers of two government-funded but locally led and
commissioned employment planning and support services and with Job Centre Plus; and with
Cabinet Member and officer leads on employment, social value and procurement.
The commission’s enquiries found there are pockets of excellent practice but these are not
always well aligned. There is some lack of clarity in policy and guidance, and join-up across
council services is not sufficiently coherent to make the most of potential opportunities arising
from our spend as a local authority. The commission is also not sufficiently assured that
expectations from our contracting requirements are always being delivered. The commission also
believes that as a key local influencer the council is in a strong position to lead by example in
supporting our disadvantaged residents into work and in pro-actively bringing together partner
organisations, voluntary sector/social enterprise and local business to build relationships and
promote a range of work opportunities available to priority groups.
Arising from its review and within the framework of some innovative and good practice already
underway in discrete areas, the commission considers the council should expand and upscale
the range of support available to those furthest from the jobs market. The commission’s full
report and recommendations will be published shortly; in reporting its findings the commission
also endorses the concomitant recommendations by the Equality Commission and specifically
those headed Supported transitions into work for those furthest away from the job market.
(NB: The Jobs For All Scrutiny Commission report and associated action plan were approved at
the 25 June Cabinet meeting. The relevant documents can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=225&MId=10504&Ver=4 )

Page 79

Accessibility of Council Services Commission
Membership: Cllr Christopher Wellbelove (co-chair), Cllr Marsha de Cordova (co-chair) and Cllr
Rob Hill
This commission, co-chaired by Councillor Christopher Wellbelove and Councillor Marsha de
Cordova – who during the 2017/18 term was elected to Parliament as MP for Battersea, and later
appointed Shadow Minister for Disabled People – was established in early 2016 in order to
assess how residents with accessibility needs are catered for in the current Lambeth online
environment and establish recommendations for improvement.
The Commission held six meetings over an 18 month period. This began with a briefing with
officers to explore the current activity being undertaken on digital accessibility; the web content
accessibility rating framework; the vast array of Lambeth digital platforms which currently existed
and the issues this posed; and the value the commission could add both through Members’
expertise and by providing links with service users. Members went on to look at the website style
guide and emerging benchmarking data, as well as feeding in their views to influence the
development of the council’s website and the plans for extensive user testing to provide
comprehensive feedback on the strengths and weaknesses of the site. In addition to this the
commission conducted visits to a local library and housing office to see first-hand the barriers faced
by those with specific access requirements, and held a meeting with two Lambeth staff members
with sensory impairments to receive feedback on the accessibility of the council’s intranet and
internet sites, and internal systems. These sessions in particular proved extremely valuable.
Throughout the process Members aimed to provide scrutiny and challenge while also influencing
the direction of development by working collaboratively with officers.
The commission completed its evidence gathering in time to report provisional findings to OSC in
October 2017. The report was duly approved by the committee and the commission submitted its
final report to Cabinet in March 2018 accompanied by an action plan from officers detailing how
the recommendations were to be taken forward. Cabinet also considered a separate report at the
same meeting arising from the Lambeth Equality Commission on the Council’s approach to
disability which dovetails with the commission’s work and which it is hoped will give added impetus
to the recommendations. OSC plans to take two formal action plan updates, six months and a
further twelve months after adoption, as is the standard practice for scrutiny commissions.
The commission’s final report and action plan can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=225&MId=10213&Ver=4 (item 4)
Burst Water Mains Commission
Membership: Cllr Jack Holborn (chair), Cllr Andy Wilson and Cllr Liz Atkins
The Burst Water Mains Commission, set up in February 2017, is Lambeth’s contribution to a
London-wide scrutiny approach exploring the causes and impacts of burst water mains in the
capital. This followed a spate of major bursts in late 2016, including two at Leigham Vale in
Streatham – a location which has been repeatedly impacted by such incidents over several years.
Commission members attended a scrutiny meeting in Islington in April 2017 during which questions
were put to the regulator Ofwat; the commission then held its own one-off meeting later the same
month during which councillors questioned senior Thames Water representatives, focusing largely
on event response and aftercare. The minutes from this public meeting can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=775&MId=10100&Ver=4

Page 80

Representatives of the commission met with other participating boroughs and Members of the
Greater London Assembly Environment Committee in June 2017 to formulate a set of joint
recommendations. These were approved by Lambeth’s Overview & Scrutiny Committee in October
2017 and can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/s91430/07c%20OSC%20Work%20Programme%20
Oct%2017%20Appx2%20water%20mains%20recs.pdf
As noted in section 4, Thames Water representatives were invited to the March 2018 OSC in
connection with a separate spate of water main bursts and the opportunity was taken to receive
an update on progress on these joint scrutiny recommendations at that juncture. Though the work
of this commission is essentially considered to have concluded, OSC is monitoring the situation
with Thames Water on an ongoing basis and indeed plans to invite them back to a future meeting
in connection with the March 2018 incidents described above.

6. Joint Health Scrutiny
As noted in the introduction, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds a statutory
responsibility to scrutinise health arrangements in the borough. Where health service changes
are proposed which impact across borough boundaries, these are considered via joint health
overview and scrutiny committee (JOSC) arrangements involving consideration of proposals by
councillors appointed from the boroughs affected. In 2017/18 Cllr Jacqui Dyer and Cllr Robert Hill
represented Lambeth on two JOSCs.
(1) Our Healthier South East London (OHSEL) JOSC
Our Healthier South East London is the NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for
south east London (SEL). The programme is led by the six NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups
(CCGs) in the region – Bexley, Bromley, Greenwich, Lambeth, Lewisham and Southwark – and
accordingly the JOSC comprises two members from each of these six boroughs. The project
aims to improve health and care across SEL with a focus on closing the gap around three
headline issues – the health and wellbeing gap; the care and quality gap; the funding and
efficiency gap. The JOSC is looking at the associated plans, and questioning on delivery of
proposals and the issues for local communities, and presenting challenge. A proposal to
centralise Planned Orthopaedic Care on two sites (and which was expected to be subject to
formal public consultation in 2017) was withdrawn in July whilst a three site option is tested over
the next 12-18 months on whether this can deliver the required quality and efficiency benefits.
The JOSC has met eight times since it was set up in 2015/16, most recently in March 2018 when
it requested that representatives from King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust attend to
discuss impacts and associated issues arising from the announcement that the trust was placed
in financial special measures by NHS Improvement (NHSI) due to a forecast end-year deficit of
£92 million. The trust gave assurances that all services will continue to run as normal, that it was
on track to deliver significant savings in the current financial year and was working closely with
NHSI to reduce the deficit and improve the financial position.

Page 81

(2) Mental Health Older Adults JOSC
A new JOSC was set up in 2017 across four boroughs (Lambeth, Southwark, Lewisham and
Croydon) to consider proposals by South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM)
to change the current model of Mental Health Older Adult inpatient bed provision. Cllr Jacqui
Dyer was elected chair of the JOSC which met on 6 November 2017. The committee agreed in
principle SLaM proposals to designate separate inpatient wards for patients with functional
(psychotic, mood and anxiety disorders) and organic (dementia) mental health needs and
accordingly a reconfiguration of three wards across the four boroughs. The JOSC sought a range
of assurances on arrangements for patients and carers and requested that commissioners carry
out an evaluation of the changes one year after they have been implemented. The JOSC will
meet again at that stage.
At the end of 2017, it was with regret that Cllr Ed Davie and the three OSC vice chairs heard the
announcement that Lord Bob Kerslake would be standing down as Chair of King’s NHS FT. OSC
members have always appreciated the good working relationship that exists between local NHS
bodies and scrutiny in Lambeth. Notwithstanding the scrutiny undertaken through the OHSEL
JOSC on King’s being placed in special measures, and reflecting the intense pressures on health
services and social care in Lambeth, the chairs met informally with Lord Kerslake to hear his
perspective on the critical issues that are faced locally and the associated issues arising from the
financial pressures on the trust, and the wider health impacts on residents and the health
economy in Lambeth.

7. Summary of the 2014-18 Municipal Term

The following tables summarise the main business of Lambeth’s Scrutiny function in 2014-18:
2014-15:
Date

Meeting
type

30 June 2014
Informal

22 July 2014

7 October 2014

Scheduled

Scheduled

Topic(s)
Induction event and work planning: councillors, officers,
stakeholders
Meeting theme: Council Strategy
 Administration Priorities
 Kings College NHS Foundation Trust – Service Move Proposals
 Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham Sexual Health Strategy
Consultation
 2014/15 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
Development
Meeting Theme: Jobs and Growth (North Lambeth)
 Maximising employment opportunities for Lambeth residents
 PNQ: provision of courses in ESOL and LDD at Lambeth
College
 Kings FT – service moves update (information item)

Page 82

Date

Meeting
type

Topic(s)

11 December
2014

Scheduled

Meeting Theme: Clean and Green (Streatham)
 Environmental Crime Scrutiny Commission Final Report
 Increasing recycling and reducing waste, fly tipping and litter
 PNQ: Lambeth Talk

21 January 2015

Special

Call In: Shared Lives

Scheduled

Meeting Theme: Budget and Finance (Brixton)
 Council Budget Proposals

21 January 2015

Scheduled
24 March 2015

Meeting Theme: Safe and Secure (Crime and Disorder)
(Clapham)
 Safer Lambeth Partnership Performance and Priorities
- Policing, community safeguarding and night time economy
- Youth offending service, probation services and alignment
and efficacy of activities across partnership
 Meeting Theme: Health and Social Care (Norwood)

Scheduled
14 May 2015








Dulwich Care Centre/CQC Inspection
Healthwatch Lambeth
Safeguarding - vulnerable children
Safeguarding – vulnerable adults
Director of Public Health Annual Report
Shared Lives - response to recommendations from the call-in

2015-16:
Date

Meeting
type
Special

Call In: Vehicle Maintenance Contract (Managed Service
Provision)

Special

Call In: Experimental Road Closures in the Loughborough
Junction and Myatt’s Field Neighbourhoods

29 June 2015
21 July 2015

Topic(s)

21 July 2015

Scheduled

11 August 2015

Special

Lead item: Council Strategy
 Lambeth’s Community Plan and Administration Priorities
 Budget and Finance (including follow-up on recommendations
made at January 2014 Budget OSC)
 Social Value Policy and Guidance
 PNQ: Proposals to increase the number of properties within
Knight’s Walk, Kennington
 2015/16 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
Development
Call In: Cressingham Gardens Estate

Page 83

Date

Meeting
type

Topic(s)
Lead item: Contract Management
 Delivery and monitoring of council contacts (both capital
projects and service contracts)
 Clean and Green – themed meeting follow up
- waste and waste management/Veolia contract
management
- Enviro Crime Action Plan - implementation update
 Quarter 1 Performance Report
 PNQ: Cooperative Parks

14 October 2015

Scheduled

10 November 2015

Special

Call In: (1) Homes for Lambeth: A Special Purpose Vehicle for
Lambeth; (2) Culture 2020

Scheduled

Lead item: Housing
 Housing update including progress on reintegration and
manifesto commitments
 Update report from Scrutiny Commission on Resident
Involvement in Housing
 Housing Bill: implications for Lambeth
 Experimental road closures (Loughborough Junction) – update
(including interim report)
 Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Our Healthier South
East London
 PNQs: Maintenance of Public Roads and Pathways;
Maintenance of Paddling Pools; Public Health Protection;
Lambeth Housing Standard on Blenheim Gardens Estate

9 December 2015

18 January 2016

Special

4 February 2016

Scheduled

23 March 2016

21 April 2016

9 May 2016

12 May 2016

Scheduled

Call In: Grounds Maintenance Services: Delivery Model
Evaluation
Lead item: Budget and Finance
 Council Budget
Lead item: Safe and Secure (Crime and Disorder)
 Safer Lambeth Partnership Performance and Priorities
 Youth Offending Service progress update
 Resident Involvement in Housing Commission final report

Special

Call In: Proposed changes to the lease held by the Coin Street
Community Builders relating to land on the South Bank
[Garden Bridge]

Special

Call In: Cressingham Gardens Estate

Scheduled

Lead item: Council Strategy and Community Plan
 Community Plan 2016 – 20
 Performance Report (Quarter 3)
 Public Health – Budget and service change proposals

Page 84

2016-17:
Date

Meeting
type

19 July 2016

Scheduled

22 August 2016

Special

16 November 2016

Scheduled
(rearranged
from 12/10)

8 December 2016

28 February 2017

23 March 2017

18 May 2017

Scheduled

Scheduled
(rearranged
from 2/2)

Scheduled

Scheduled

Topic(s)
Lead item: Health and Adult Social Care
 Health and social care integration
 Safeguarding adults
 Lambeth Safeguarding Adults Board annual report 2015/16
 Vehicle Maintenance Contract update
 Performance update (Q4 indicators relevant to meeting
theme)
Call In: Events Strategy
Lead item: Transport
 Lambeth Long Term Transport Strategy baseline report
 Update and recommendations from Equality Streets
Scrutiny Commission
 Enviro-Crime Commission action plan update
Lead item: Budget / Savings Proposals
 Financial Planning Report 2016/17 – 2019/20
Lead item: Health and Social Care
 NHS SEL Sustainability and Transformation Plan
 Winter Pressures
 Adult Health and Social Care Integration
 Adult Social Care Savings
 Healthier High Streets Commission (action plan
implementation)
 Equality Streets Commission final report
Lead Item: Housing
 Resident Involvement in Housing Scrutiny Commission
Action Plan Update / New Ways of Engagement
 Housing Strategy
 Lambeth Housing Standard
 Legislation Update
Lead item: Safe and Secure (Crime and Disorder)
Provisional:
 Safer Lambeth Partnership Performance and Priorities
 Youth Offending Service update

Page 85

2017-18:
Date

Meeting
type

Topic(s)

3 May 2017

Special

Call In: (1) Key Guarantees to Residents Affected by Estate
Regeneration (2) Central Hill

Scheduled

Lead item: Crime and Disorder
 Safer Lambeth Partnership – Review of Safer Lambeth
Activity 2016/17 and Emerging Strategic Priorities
 Youth Offending Service: Progress Report 2016/17

Scheduled

Lead item: Council Strategy
 Budget Update / July Finance Review
 Organisational Redesign Update
 Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-21
 Corporate Performance 2016/17

Scheduled

Lead item: Equalities
 Lambeth Equality Commission
 Jobs For All Scrutiny Commission
 Accessibility of Council Digital Services Scrutiny
Commission
 Borough Plan Implementation / Corporate Performance

Scheduled

Lead item: Health / Transport
 Living Well Network Alliance Contract
 Lambeth Long Term Transport Strategy
 Equality Streets Scrutiny Commission Action Plan
Update
 Borough Plan Implementation / Corporate Performance

Scheduled

Lead item: Budget
 Financial Planning Report: Revenue and Capital
Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21
 Housing Fire Safety Update

Scheduled

Lead item: Outstanding work programme items
 Water Mains
 Organisational Redesign Update
 Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission Action
Plan Update

18 May 2017

13 July 2017

19 October 2017

7 December 2017

1 February 2018

22 March 2018

Page 86

Commissions undertaken in this period were:
Title/Proposal

Status

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)

Environmental
Crime

Complete. Action plan approved by
Cabinet in March 2015.

Cllr John Kazantzis

Healthier High
Streets

Complete. Action plan approved by
Cabinet in March 2016.

Cllr Ed Davie

Resident
Involvement in
Housing

Complete. Action plan approved by
Cabinet in June 2016.

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &

Equality Streets:
Parking in a Liveable
Lambeth

Complete. Final report approved by OSC in
February 2017 and reported to Cabinet in
April 2017.

Cllr Nigel Haselden &

Improving Children
Services

Concluded. Work taken forward via
Children’s Scrutiny Sub-Committee.

Cllr Ed Davie

Issues Affecting
Children’s Education
in Lambeth

First annual session held 29 June 2015.

Cllr Ed Davie &

Second held 24 May 2016.

Cllr Max Deckers-Dowber

Cllr Mary Atkins

Cllr Robert Hill

Remit then passed to Children’s Services
Scrutiny Sub-Committee

Burst Water Mains

Meeting held 25 April 2017; further follow
up via item on 22/3/18 OSC agenda.

Cllr Andy Wilson &

Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services

Complete. Final report presented to
Cabinet in March 2018.

Cllr Marsha de Cordova &
Cllr Christopher Wellbelove

Jobs For All

Investigations concluded. Final report
presented to Cabinet in June 2018.

Cllr Matt Parr

Cllr Jack Holborn

Page 87

Joint Health Scrutiny undertaken in the 2014-18 municipal period is listed below.
Title/Proposal
Joint Health OSC

Status
In progress.

‘Our Healthier South
East London’
Joint Health OSC

‘Older Adults Mental
Health’

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Robert Hill

Concluded.

‘Place of Safety’
Joint Health OSC

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Robert Hill

In progress.

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Robert Hill

This page is intentionally left blank

